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Introduction

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This Annual Report has been provided
to the Trustees in compliance

with the Trust Indenture for the
Nisichawayasihk Trust and
Taskinigahp Trust.

Under Article 19.3 of the Nisichawayasihk Trust
Indenture and Article 21.3 of the Taskinigahp

Trust Indenture, Chief and Council and the

Trustees of the Nisichawayasihk & Taskinigahp

Trust are required to call a Meeting of Members to
review each of their respective reports, and address
guestions and concerns fromm community members.

All members are strongly encouraged to attend
these annual meetings as they form an integral
part of the Community Approval & Community
Involvement Process (CAP/CIP) to allocating funds
to community programs.

Under the disclosure provisions of the Trust Indenture, the Trustee’s
Annual Report - and the Chief and Council’s Annual Narrative Report and Audited Financial
Report and Opinion - are available to any community member upon request.

The Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation Trust Office administers all programs and projects
unless indicated otherwise.

ANNUAL REPORT REQUIREMENTS

Under 18.1 of the Nisichawayasihk Trust Indenture and 20.1 of the Taskinigahp Trust
Indenture, Trustees of the both Trusts are required to provide Chief and Council with an
annual report on the financial operations of the Trusts within 90 days after the end of each
calendar year.

This report is to cover the period from January 1to December 31, 2013, and is to include
an Auditor’s Report and Opinion, as well as any other special audit reports and opinions
requested by the Trustees.

Under Article 19.1 of the Nisichawayasihk Trust Indenture and 21.1 of the Taskinigahp Trust
Indenture, Chief and Council are required to provide the Trustees with an annual Narrative
report, which explains how all Trust moneys were managed and administered during the
same January 1to December 31 time period. In addition, Chief and Council must also
provide an audited Financial Report of the previous fiscal year, which includes a financial
statement of Trust moneys received and an Auditor’s Opinion.

TRUST OFFICE Annual Report 2013 5



Nisichawayasihk Trustees

Financial Operations Report

APPROVAL OF ANNUAL AND AUDITED
FINANCIAL REPORT

We, the duly elected Chief & Council for the Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation do hereby
approve of this year’s Annual and Audited Financial Report in compliance with Article 19.2
of the Nisichawayasihk Trust Indenture and 21.2 of the Taskinigahp Trust Indenture which
forms part of the NFA Implementation Agreement signed by the Nisichawayasihk Cree
Nation, Canada, the Province of Manitoba and Manitoba Hydro on March 18, 1996, and

the Project Development Agreement entered into between Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation,
Manitoba Hydro and Taskinigahp Power Corporation, the General Partner and the Limited
Partnership on September 26, 2006 between Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation, Manitoba Hydro
and Taskinigahp Power Corporation, the General Partner and the Limited Partnership.

In compliance with Articles 19.1 and 19.2 of the Nisichawayasihk Trust Indenture and 21.1 and
21.2 of the Taskinigahp Trust Indenture, this year’s approved Annual and Audited Financial
Report has been forwarded to the Trustees of the Nisichawayasihk & Taskinigahp Trust and
made available to members at both the Nisichawayasihk Trust Office and Nisichawayasihk
Chief & Council’s office. In compliance with Article 19.1 of Nisichawayasihk Trust Indentures
and 21.1 of the Taskinigahp Trust Indenture, the 2013 fourth quarter report is attached to this
year’s narrative and audited financial statement.

In compliance with Article 19.2 of the Nisichawayasihk Trust Indenture and 21.2 of the
Taskinigahp Trust Indenture, Notice of the Availability of this year’s Annual and Audited
Financial Report has been given in the same manner as for a meeting of members.

In compliance with Article 19.3 of the Nisichawayasihk Trust Indenture and 21.3 of the
Taskinigahp Trust Indenture, a Meeting of Members shall be held within one hundred and
twenty days after the fiscal year end to discuss this year’s Annual, Audited Financial Report
by Chief & Council and this year’s Trustee’s Annual Report on the Financial Operations

of the Nisichawayasihk Trust and Taskinigahp Trust. Notice of this meeting shall be given

in accordance with Article 8.2 of the Nisichawayasihk Trust Indenture and 8.4 of the
Taskinigahp Trust Indenture.

NCN Chief & Council

Chief Jerry Primrose Councillor Marcel Moody
Councillor D'Arcy Linklater Councillor Joe Moose
Councillor Patrick Linklater Councillor Ron D. Spence

Councillor Shirley Linklater



NELSON HOUSE
TRUSTEES

Chief Jerry Primrose

Alvin Yetman David Kobliski

CORPORATE TRUSTEE

Royal Trust Corporation of Canada
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BACKGROUND

The Nisichawayasihk Trust
was created in March,
1996. The duties and
responsibilities of the
Trustees are contained

in the Trust Indenture

that is part of the Nelson
House First Nation

NFA Implementation
Agreement between
Nelson House First Nation,
Canada, Manitoba and
Manitoba Hydro.

Each year the Trustees
are required to provide
the Chief and Council of
Nelson House First Nation
and, upon request, any
member of Nelson House
First Nation with an annual
report on the financial
operations of the Trust.
The report must cover

the period from January
1to December 31 of the
previous year, and must
include the Trust Auditor’s
report and opinion and
any other special audit
report and opinions which
may have been requested
by the Trustees during the
reporting period.



FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR 2013

As determined by the Trust Indentures

and Community Approval Process (CAP),
the amount available for expenditure

form the Trust (“Funds Available”) for

2013 was $3,056,216.18. Of this amount,
2,930,120.93 were distributed from the Main
Trust, $73,865.31 from the Investment and
Heritage Account and $52,229.94 from

the Recreational Facilities and Programs
Sub-Account.

The December 31, 2012 interest payment on
the $40,000,000 Manitoba Hydro Bond was
deposited in the amount of $1,150,000.

In the 2013 financial statements, the
accountants have shown transfers of
$1,778,102 to the Nisichawayasihk Trust
Office. Also in the 2013 financial statements,
the accountants show $1,278,114 as due to
Nisichawayasihk Trust Office. Due to a time
issue, the amount of $1,278,114 was paid on
January 3, 2014. These figures represent the
total 2013 CAP Budget of $3,056,216.18.

In compliance with Article 19.3 of the
Nisichawayasihk Trust Indenture and

21.3 of the Taskinigahp Trust Indenture, a
Meeting of Members shall be held within
one hundred and twenty days after the
fiscal year end to discuss this year’s
Annual, Audited Financial Report by Chief
& Council and this year’s Trustee’s Annual
Report on the Financial Operations of the
Nisichawayasihk Trust and Taskinigahp
Trust. Notice of this meeting shall be
given in accordance with Article 8.2 of the
Nisichawayasihk Trust Indenture and 8.4 of
the Taskinigahp Trust Indenture.

The Recreational Facilities
and Programs Sub-Account

The Recreational Facilities and Programs
Sub-Account is part of the Nisichawayasihk
Trust. As per terms of the Trust Indenture,
funds held in Recreational Facilities and
Programs Sub-Account must be used “to
build or developer recreational facilities

on Reserve and for recreation programs

for Nelson House.” There are no powers to
encroach on the capital of this account. In
2013, the Community approved recreation
programs and proposals totaling $52,229.94.
The programs and proposals to be funded is
determined by the Recreation Board during
the year.




FINANCIAL OPERATIONS REPORT

Capital Payments Received by
the Trust

The Trust earned a realized capital gain of $21
in the Recreational Facilities and Programs
Sub-Account.

In accordance with Schedule 202 and Article
2.5.1 of the Nelson House First Nation NFA
Implementation Agreement, Manitoba Hydro
must pay to Chief and Council, for settlement
into the Investment and Heritage Account,
predetermined compensation payments for
excursions from the compensated range.

There were no predetermined compensation
payments made for the period January 1to
December 31, 2013.

Revenue Received and
Generated by the Trust

Total revenues generated in 2013 from

the Trust Investments were $1,235,655.95.
The revenues (interest and dividends) were
recorded in each account as follows:

Main Trust Account $1,150,370.59
Investment &

Heritage Account $26,328.84
Claims Account $18.19
Recreation &

Program Facilities Account $58,938.33
Total Revenue $1,235,655.95

Investments Held as at
December 31, 2013

As at December 31, 2013, the total value of
all Trust accounts was $43,994,629.42. This
amount was held in the following accounts
and in the following proportions:

TRUST OFFICE Annual Report 2013

Main Trust Account:

Total Value $41,152,018.25

The Main Trust holds a $40,000,000
Manitoba Hydro Bonds due 31/12/2014
earning an interest rate of 5.75 percent. This
bond pays interest of $2,300,000 per year,
which is used to help fund the CAP Budget
each year. In 2014, the Manitoba Hydro Bond
will mature and Chief and Council and the
Nelson House Trustees will be negotiating
with Manitoba Hydro to renew the Manitoba
Hydro Bond for further term.

The cash held in the Main Trust is $1,152,018.25
as at December 31, 2013. This high amount of
cash reflects the bond interest received but
not paid out to the Trust Office until January
3, 2014, again due to a timing issue.

The total value of the Main Trust as at
December 31, 2013 is $41,152,018.25 consisting
of the value of the Manitoba Hydro Bond in
the amount of $40,000,000, and cash in the
amount of $1,152,018.25

Investment and Heritage Account:
Total Value $1,166,545.97

The Hydro bond held in this account became
due June 30, 2013 and was not replaced with
a similar bond.

The total value of the Investment and
Heritage Account as at December 31, 2013 is
$1,166,545.97 which is currently all in cash.

Claims Account:

Total Value $1,934.64

The cash held in the Claims Account is
$1,934.64 as at December 31, 2013.

Recreation and Program Facilities Account:
Total Value $1,624,130.56

This account holds a diversified portfolio of
high quality bonds worth $1,457,846.43.
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The cash held in the account as at December
31, 2013 is $166,284.13. The total value of

the Recreational Facilities and Programs
Sub-Account as at December 31, 2013 is
$1,624,130.56 consisting of the value of the
bonds held in the account $1,457,846.43, and
cash of $16,284.13.

As at December 31, 2013, we estimate the
portfolio will generate an annual income of
approximately $54,931. As bonds mature, we
will invest the proceeds at prevailing rates for
terms of four to seven years.

Markets in 2013

In 2013 we saw the end of a 30-year trend of
declining bond yields. Bonds had dropped
to historically low yields and in 2013 yields
bottomed out and started to increase.

Since bond yields and bond values tend to
move in opposite directions, we saw some
declines in bond values particularly with
bonds of longer maturities.

For several years we witnessed very good
bond returns as a result of declining bond
yields. 2013 was the first year in more than
ten years that bonds provided an overall
return that was negative. The overall return
of a bond is combination of the interest
income received and a change in the market
value of bonds.

The one-year returns in the Canadian
(investment grade) bond markets were:

Short-term bonds (less than
five-year maturity Term Bonds) 1.74%

Medium-term bonds (between

five- and 10-year maturity) -0.63%
Long-term bonds (greater

than 10-year maturity) 6.16%
All investment grade bonds

(short, medium and long) 1.19%

The movement of
bond yields
upward was in
part due to
improving
economic
conditions.
The U.S.
Federal
Reserve
began to

cut back on
the money supply it

was providing the market as it felt more
comfortable that the improvement in the
economy was becoming self-sustaining.
There were several positives for the
economy in 2013:

m Unemployment is at a five-year low point
m Auto sales are at a seven-year high
m Gas process have dropped

m And the housing sector, which dragged
the U.S. into recession five years ago, is
rebounding.

The equity (stock) markets of developed
nations had a very good year of returns
particularly outside of Canada. The
emerging equality markets had more
modest returns in 2013.

Canadian companies, as measured by the
S & P TSX Capped Composite index, had
returns of 13 percent in 2013. That is about
3 percent above long-term averages for
Canadian companies.

The U.S. Equity market, as measured by the
S & P 500 index, had a very strong year in
2013 with a return of 41.6 percent. This in
part is catching up for the weak returns of
the U.S. equity market provided in the first
decade of the 21st century, when it provided
an average return per year of just 1.4 percent
over ten years. Since 2010 the U.S. market
had an average return of 16.2 percent.



The developed international equity markets (Europe, Australia, Japan) had a return
of 31.6 percent in 2013.

The emerging equity markets (e.g., China, India, and Brazil) had returns of 4.3 percent in 2013.
The growth in the economies of these developing markets are still far above the growth rates
in the developed world but the rates were lower than what investors were expecting.

The returns of the Trust at the end of 2013 were:

Annualized Returns 1 Year 3 Year S Year
Bonds 1.8% 41% 5.4%
Canadian Equity 17.3% 5.9% 14.1%
U.S. Equity 42.0% 18.4% 14.4%
International Equity 26.1% 12.0% 71%

Outlook

Central Banks kept the overnight lending rates
at very low levels in 2013. This is expected

to continue for all 2014 as well. There are no
inflation pressures on the horizon that are
causing concern for central bankers. In 2013
Canadian inflation was 1.2 percent and it is
expected to remain calm. When the overnight
lending rate is low the rate or yield for short-
term bonds tends to be low.

Our forecast is for 10 year bond yields to rise
in the next year. Our forecast for Canadian

10 year bond yields to a rise from the current
yield of 2.4 to 3.25 percent by February 2015.

Equity market valuations have risen
materially, signaling investors are indeed
pricing in a sustained global recovery. While
the S & P 500 had a very strong year, our
view is that the move only approached a fair
value from being under-valued. We believe
global equity markets generally still lie below
fair value.
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We believe Canadian and U.S. companies
are currently at fair value based on current
earnings. With the global recovery gaining
traction, stronger revenues and corporate
profitability could contribute another leg to
the rally.

Our forecast for the S & P 500 index (U.S.
Equity) is a level of 2,000 by February 2015
or an increase of 7.5 percent. Our forecast
for the S & P TSX Composite is a level of
15,000 by February 2015 or an increase of
5.5 percent.

Prepared by:
ROYAL TRUST CORPORATION OF CANADA
Corporate Trustee

We declare that the information contained
on the preceding and following pages is true
to the best of our information, knowledge
and belief.



Manitoba Hydro's

Ongoing Obligations

The 1996 NFA Implementation Agreement is a complex document
that requires careful and constant attention to ensure the Agreement’s
provisions are fulfilled. Under the Agreement, Manitoba Hydro fulfilled
several on-going commitments in 2012 in the following areas:

IMPLEMENTATION OF SAFETY MEASURES

In accordance with Article 2.7.2 of the 1996 m Supply, install and maintain mid-channel
NFA Implementation Agreement, Manitoba directional markers or buoys, where
Hydro, in consultation with Nelson House, reasonably required

at Manitoba Hydro’s expense, continues to

) i m Maintains warning signs of rapids or falls
implement the following safety measures:

between Footprint Lake and Wuskwatim

m Prepares, marks and maintains ice Lake, at reasonably visible upstream
crossings and main trails on the ice in locations on both banks of the Burntwood
the following locations; Burntwood River, River

Three Point Lake, God’s Rapids Portage,
Early Morning Rapids, Wapisu Lake, shown
Notigi Lake and Rat Lake

m Provides reasonable maintenance of
existing portages at Gods Rapids and Early
Morning Rapids shown on Schedule 2.1, of

m Monitor the safety of ice crossings when the Agreement, to a standard sufficient to
reasonably required in the winter period accommodate equipment typically used by
m Post notices with respect to changing ice members
conditions and vehicle load limits on any m Maintain flashing amber lights at each end
ice crossing of the God’s Rapids Portage and the Early

m Remove debris at shoreline locations where Morning Rapids Portage

winter ice trails intersect the shoreline and m Maintains docks, boat skids and boat
a hazard to access exists launches.

OPERATION, MAINTENANCE & REPLACEMENT OF
SPECIFIED REMEDIAL WORKS AND THE ARENA

In accordance to Article 11.2.1 of the 1996 by paying 90 percent of
NFA Agreement addresses the Operation & the Arena Operation and
Maintenance Board, the Board membership Maintenance Costs. The

currently consists of two members from Gilbert McDonald Arena
Manitoba Hydro, Warren Tait and Bob approved budget for the
Monkman and two members appointed 2012/2013 fiscal year was
by Chief & Council, Jerry Primrose and $539,890.60 with NCN

Curtis Lobster with their alternate David M. fulfilling their obligation
Spence. The board continues to fulfill their and contributed $55,000
duties outlined for them as per Article 1.3 of from the 2013 CAP Budget.

the 1996 Agreement. These funds were transferred

to the Gilbert McDonald Arena Finance
Under Article 11.4.4 of the Agreement, Department in accordance with the
Manitoba Hydro fulfilled its obligation disclosure requirement.
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The funds that are allocated were spent on various projects and upgrades and are as follows:

m Inspection and repair of HVAC and ice plant = Upgrade to all dressing room areas
systems included repair to furnace, new matting and

m Purchase of tools and equipment needed to installation of player stalls

operate and maintain the arena m Time delay lighting placed in all dressing
m Installation of energy efficient lighting and rooms

furnaces to decrease operating costs and m Renovations of Men’s & Women’s main

increase comfort level washrooms.

m Painted and repaired all windows, rink
boards, and put in matting in the front
lobby and ice rink areas

WATER REGIME PREDETERMINE _ e wagy
COMPENSATION

Under Article 2.4.1 & 2.5.1 of the 1996 NFA
Implementation Agreement, it states

if daily average water levels or rates of
change outside of the parameters of the
Compensated Range occur, Manitoba Hydro
shall pay compensation to Nelson House.

The reports provided by Manitoba Hydro
for the period November 1, 2012 - March
31, 2013 and April 1, 2013 - October 31,
2013 showed no excursions from the
compensated range, neither the daily
average water level nor the seven or
thirty-one day rates of change.

To review the Real-Time Hydrometric
Data Graph for the Footprint Lake in
Nelson House, Manitoba (O5TFOOQO1) go
to www.wateroffice.ec.gc.ca website,

it will provide a water level history and
compensation summary for a specific
period. The graph search cannot be
older than eighteen months old

or a future date.

To access the graphs for the water level
link type in the above noted link:

1. Select Province: Manitoba

2. Select Footprint Lake at Nelson House
(O5TFOO1).
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Other Implementation Issues

COMPENSATION LANDS

The 1996 NFA Implementation Agreement
provided six parcels of provincial Crown
lands (at Suwanee Lake, Wapisu Lake, The
Junction, Leftrook Lake, Baldock Lake and
Odei River) will be made into NCN reserve
lands. Manitoba has already granted NCN an
exclusive use permit of the parcels.

NCN, Manitoba and Canada are still
discussing the mechanics of finalizing
the process. Some documents must be
completed. The subsequent information
provides an update on Compensation,
Easement and Fee Simple Lands.

Article 3 - Compensation
Lands & Easement Lands

Site 3.2 - Suwannee Lake, Site 3.3 - Wapisu
Lake, Site 3.7 - Odei River transferred by OIC
(Order in Council by Canada) 87/2006 dated
February 22, 2006, accepted by Canada by
MO 2007-016 dated August 10, 2007.

Site 3.4 - Junction, Site 3.5 - Leftrook Lake/
Mile 35, Site 3.6 - Baldock Lake have not
been transferred, the Approval in Principal
for these three parcels is still under review
by Canada. Canada has prepared new
Schedules to the Pre-Transfer Use Agreement
to accommodate the cabins that are present
on Sites 3.4, 3.5
and 3.6. Canada

is reviewing
whether the camp
on Baldock Lake
and the Youth
Camp can be dealt
~ with through a
new schedule to
the Pre-transfer
Uses Agreement.
Canada further

i"’

advises that it will need to update the
environmental assessment for these parcels
because the last environmental assessment
was conducted in 2002. This work will be
done next summer.

Article 4 - Fee Simple Land

Nelson House chose the Fee Simple Lands
because the Notigi Service Centre, Site 4.1
(formerly referred to as Site SC3 Notigi,
Portage & Service Centre approx. one
hectare) was under a provincial Land Use
Permit issued to Nelson House and was
being used as a service station site and
restaurant following the date of the 1996
NFA Agreement

Letter from INAC dated July 2, 1991 has
attached Band Council Resolution dated May
30, 1991 from the Nelson House Indian Band
requesting this parcel of land be transferred
by Manitoba to Canada and set apart as
reserve for the use and benefit of the Nelson
House Indian band in partial fulfillment of the
Northern Flood Agreement.

There have been no additional band council
resolutions with respect to this parcel of the
land on Manitoba Conservation land files.
This parcel of land has not been transferred
but a Crown Land Use Permit No. 0004176
has been issued to Nelson House First
Nation. A review of NCN TLE land Selections
indicates there are no TLE Selections
affecting this parcel of land.

It is presumed the Fee Simple Land under
Article 4 of the CIA that Site 4.1 would
continue to be held under Permit until a
decision is made that the land is not to be
set apart as reserve, and then would be
transferred to a Corporate Trustee under
Article 4.3.2.



COMPENSATION &
FEE SIMPLE LANDS (ARTICLE 3,4)

Current Status

Type of Lands # of acres Selected
Complete Outstanding

3 parcels (10,281
. 5 surveyed parcels
Compensation acres) converted )
54,682 . require Canada
(8 parcels) to reserve five
approval

parcels surveyed

Manitoba to survey
1.6 (Notigi Service
Centre parcel)

ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING

Article 7 of the 1996 NFA Implementation
Agreement establishes and describes
arrangements to coordinate environmental
monitoring and share the information
developed. Other than the environmental
studies that were conducted as a result of
the proposed Wuskwatim Project, there has
been no other activity associated

with Article 7.

Fee Simple
(1 parcel)

Canada is responsible for scheduling and
convening meetings in accordance with
Article 7.2. There has been no activity nor
have there been meetings requested
within the 2013 fiscal year.
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WUSKWATIM IMPLEMENTATION OFFICE

Establishment of the Wuskwatim Implementation Office is a provision of the Wuskwatim

Project Development Agreement (PDA). Operations began in August 2006 following the

June ratification of the PDA by NCN Citizens and will continue throughout the Wuskwatim
construction period, which is scheduled to take about six years. Because the Wuskwatim project
is a partnership between NCN and Manitoba Hydro, the role of the Implementation Office is:

m To ensure effective implementation of all agreed to components of the PDA

m To ensure that the PDA commitments in contracts are honored as specified

m To ensure all parties fulfill responsibilities to NCN

m To gather information on project progress and communicate with NCN Citizens

m To maintain on-going discussion and liaison with Manitoba Hydro.

IMPLEMENTATION OFFICE SUPPORT TO
MEMBERS AND THE COMMUNITY

Because of the Implementation Office’s
in-depth knowledge of the PDA, other
agreements and generally “how things
work,” the office is able to provide a valuable
support and advocacy role for citizens and
the Community. WIO support included:

m Advising citizens of the job application
process and directing them to ATEC or the
job referral Service in Thompson

m Advertise/promote internal job postings
with NCN Citizens preference

m Seeking out training opportunities and
assisting/referring NCN Citizens in the
application process

m Raising awareness and concerns about
the lack of background orientation and
familiarization provided to NCN Citizens

related to working under the Burntwood-
Nelson Agreement. Many members are
working under a collective agreement for
the first time and their lack of familiarity
with its requirements and provisions
continues to be a source of frustration for
many NCN workers

Assisting NCN and its citizens become
aware of and access new Wuskwatim
business opportunities

Assist NCN in prompting Manitoba
Hydro action to protect shorelines from
flood related erosion. A key focus is the
Footprint Lake and Blacky’s Island area
with historic significance to NCN.



WUSKWATIM SAFETY MEASURES

As specified in the Project Development Agreement, Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation (NCN)
and Manitoba Hydro have agreed to implement safety measures in the Wuskwatim area. The
measures are to assist resource users in reaching their trap lines safely.

WINTER SAFETY TRAILS

Five safety trails were originally identified for development, but only two are in use (Trails 1
and 5). Trail 3 was built, but because it runs through a Caribou Breeding Ground with related
conservation concerns by both Manitoba Hydro and NCN, it has been decommissioned

and was not opened this past winter. Trail 2 was built as part of Trail 3, so is no longer in

use and Trail 4 was not built on the advice of Elders and resource users because of safety
concerns related to its location downstream of the generating station project. NCN Citizens
or trappers have been hired to undertake all trail development but Manitoba Hydro is
responsible for ongoing maintenance.

SOCIO-CULTURAL AND
SPIRITUAL ISSUES

The PDA Adverse Effects Agreement contains
provisions that specifically address socio-cultural
and spiritual issues that were identified of significant
importance to NCN Citizens. Two specific

issues identified were the Footprints and the
Wuskwatim Village Campsite.

TRUST OFFICE Annual Report 2013
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THE FOOTPRINTS

As most NCN Citizens know, the Churchill
River Diversion flooded the original site of
the Legendary Footprints for which Footprint
Lake is named. The site, which is located in
the lake near Moore’s Bay, had important
cultural and spiritual significance to NCN.
Prior to the flooding, the rock containing

the Footprints was removed from its original
location so it would not be lost forever. Since
removal in 1977, the Footprints have been
relocated more than once, but have now
been returned to a site very close to their
original location. WIO prepared a proposal
to Taskinigahp Trust to use NCN’s portion

of the adverse effects agreement. The work
plan is to work on a story board and work on
developing plans to design and construct an
interpretative center where NCN Elders and
spiritual people can do ceremonies.

Chief and Council have named a smaller
committee led by Councillor D’Arcy
Linklater, and including Elders Madeline

Spence, Jimmy

D Spence, Harry
Spence, Jimmy-
Hunter-Spence,
Susan Kobliski,
and Alvin Yetman
representing the Implementation Office to
move the project forward.

This year the footprints were removed from
the foreign rock they sat on, and moved

to its rock of origination above its original
location. NCN elder Wellington Spence and
helpers Stanley Spence and Everett Linklater
had coordinated a sweat prior to the
removal of the legendary footprints. A feast
was coordinated by Jacqueline Spence to
celebrate the restoration of the Footprints.

A site plan defining all components of the
Interpretive Centre needs to be prepared and
NCN has identified a work plan schedule for
addressing the Footprints issue.

ADVERSE EFFECTS PAYMENTS

NCN has been paid a total of $5.7 million
in compensation through the Taskinigahp
Trust for disturbance of land related to the
Wuskwatim Project.

Payments were keyed to important project
milestones, i.e., signing of the PDA, start

of the access road, site preparations and
substantial completions of the access road,
etc. The entire $5.7 million has now been
paid to the Taskinigahp Trust. NCN Chief
and Council have accessed 50 percent of
settlement proceeds which amounted to
$2.5 million of the adverse effects moneys
to invest in the Wuskwatim Project Limited
Partnership. A proposal was submitted again
for an additional $2.5 million for the same
reason. To date NCN has invested over $19
million towards Wuskwatim partnership for
a percentage ownership of approximately

28 percent total
ownership in
shares to date.

The Transmission
Line Project has

a separate fund
that is directly
geared to funding
resource programs
and has a savings
account within the
Resource Sub- :
Account. NCN :
received $389,000

in the Transmission Development Fund to
date of which 25 percent was put into
the Resource Sub-Account. NCN should
be expecting the same payment annually
specifically for resource program.




WOODLAND CARIBOU
COMMITTEE

The Woodland Caribou, for
which NCN has expressed
serious concerns, have

been registered as a

species at risk in the NCN
Resource Management Area.
NCN has two Members
representing the First

Nation on the Woodland
Caribou Committee: retired
commercial fisherman and
trapper, Elder Sam Dysart,
and retired Conservation
Officer, Councillor Ron D.
Spence. Manitoba Hydro
and Manitoba also have
representatives on

the committee.

ADVISORY COMMITTEES

The PDA established a monitoring process for various aspects of the Wuskwatim project
to ensure ongoing consultation with NCN Citizens. Three committees were created: the
Advisory Committee on Employment (ACE), the Construction Advisory Committee (CAC)
and the Monitoring Advisory Committee (MACQC).

ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT (acE)

ACE hears and considers employment-related issues and complaints. The committee reviews
complaints, grievances and table referral issues; these tabled issues are referred to the
appropriate departments. It also provides advice to the Wuskwatim project manager about
the appropriateness of job-order qualifications as well as advice on implementation of the
on-the-job referral process, strategies, materials and processes for cross-cultural awareness
training for project workers. NCN Chief and Council have appointed two committee Members
to ACE: Curtis Lobster and Terry Linklater. The Advisory Committee on employment has
fulfilled its obligation under the Project Development Agreement and no longer exists.
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MONITORING ADVISORY COMMITTEE MAC)

The MAC is consultative and advisory to the
partnership. NCN’s Members on the MAC
receive regular updates regarding ongoing
Wuskwatim Generation Project monitoring
activities. Through their participation on
the committee, NCN’s Members gain an
understanding of economic, social and
environmental project monitoring. The
members’ responsibilities include:

m Receiving regular project updates

m Providing input on monitoring activities
and planning

m Reviewing public and regulatory reports.

NCN Chief and Council have appointed

three NCN Citizens to the committee: Alvin
Yetman, Allan Linklater and Jimmy Hunter-
Spence representing the General Partner.
The committee reviews socio-economic data,
environmental data, physical environmental

data, and ongoing environmental data during
and after the project. The MAC continues

to monitor

to socio
Economic and
Environmental
monitoring after
the project.
AOL, a100
percent solely
owned by the
Nisichawayasihk
Cree Nation,
has been
working closely
with the MAC
committee. An
annual report

is provided to
NCN which can
be viewed on NCNCREE.COM website.

CONSTRUCTION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (cac)

The CAC is responsible to WPLP and serves
to provide accurate and pertinent project
information to the limited partners as
construction progresses. The committee is a
consultative and advisory to the partnership.
NCN’s Members on the CAC receive regular
updates on:

m Engineering activity
m Number of contracts awarded to date

m Current and foreseeable environmental and
regulatory issues

m Current and upcoming cultural events

m Current and upcoming on-site training
activities

m Relevant project issues identified by Elders,
community Leadership, NCN Citizens,
project manager and staff.

Through the CAC, NCN’s concerns related to

construction activities and management can
be forwarded to the General Partner Board.
NCN Chief and Council appointed four NCN
Citizens: Burnell Anderson, Ed Primrose,
Dennis Linklater —
and Jimmy :
Hunter-Spence
representing
the General
Partner to the
committee.
The committee
reports
directly to the
partnership.
The committee
fulfilled its
obligation
under the PDA
and no longer
exists.




DIRECT NEGOTIATED CONTRACTS

NCN in partnership with Sodexho has an
agreement to supply catering and security
contracts, facility maintenance, and
recreation programming. All profits have
been given to the band for an investment
into Wuskwatim Partnership of over two
million. Over the last six years, 40 percent
of the salaries have been used to fund an
assistant finance clerk.

WPLP convenience store had rain during the
construction phase, the profits from which
fund annual scholarships for students in
environmental studies.

CROSS CULTURAL
PROGRAM

As part of the PDA, NCN negotiated a cross-
cultural component, a first of its kind in any
major construction project. Susan Kobliski
runs the program along with the other staff.

The program is designed to recognize and
integrate traditional Aboriginal knowledge,
teachings and practices to promote
understanding and harmony between
Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal workers
and to acknowledge the importance of the
land, water and living things in developing
the Wuskwatim Hydroelectric project. The
program has three major responsibilities:
Cross-cultural Awareness Training,
Ceremonies, and On-site Counselling. The
Cross Cultural programming and on-site
counseling services was completed October
30, 2012. Over $100,000 has been profited
from 2006 to 2012; profits will be used
over the next five years for ceremonies

at Wuskwatim.
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In addition, a proposal has been submitted
for NCN to conduct required monitoring
activities identified in the PDA though a
new business venture NCN has created.
AOL is managed by Mark Linklater with
assistance from Lawrence Dysart. Last year
they profited over $50,000 to go toward
scholarships for NCN Citizens interested in
pursuing a career in Environmental Studies.
Under the monitoring plan, a Work Plan
and budget are submitted to Manitoba
Hydro on an annual basis. NCN hired over
25 NCN Citizens to complete work on a

No Net Loss Plan bio-Mediation works Site
W3 at Wuskwatim Lake. Work will continue
at Wuskwatim Lake this year under the
monitoring plan geared for 2013.
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NCN/MANITOBA HYDRO
COORDINATION MEETINGS

NCN representatives Chief Jerry Primrose and
Councillor Marcel Moody, legal advisor Val
Mathews-Lemieux, Financial Advisor Bruce
Hickey and Wuskwatim Implementation
Office co representative Norman Linklater

(or alternate Alvin Yetman) regularly meet

with Manitoba Hydro representatives to
address ongoing issues between NCN and
Manitoba Hydro. Our primary issue has been
focused on Wuskwatim Investment on market
conditions, explained below.

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (PDA)
REVIEW AND PDA REVIEW 2

Since the Wuskwatim PDA negotiations
began over five years ago, the global financial
and economic environment has experienced
dramatic fluctuations. Chief and Council
began raising concerns with Manitoba Hydro
late in 2007 when the value of the Canadian
dollar soared along with Wuskwatim
construction costs. They wanted to ensure
that NCN will receive the maximum benefits
possible from the Wuskwatim project.

To address concerns, Manitoba Hydro and
NCN have agreed to undertake a review
process to ensure the PDA remains fair. The
review will try to ensure the benefits NCN
receives are as good as, or better than, those
projected at the time the PDA was signed.
The review will include an analysis of the Joint
Keeyask Development Agreement, which was
negotiated in the recent economic climate,
keeping in mind there are differences in the
scale and other characteristics of the projects
and the needs of the various communities.

The PDA Supplementary Agreement has
been signed between NCN and Manitoba
Hydro where a pipe ceremony was included.
The supplementary agreement covers two
areas in commercial terms which cover five
investment options for NCN to consider. In a
nut shell they are as follows:

Increase Equity Loan Leverage - from 4x to
6x to reduce cash NCN must invest but as a
revenue is projected to increase loans under

the expected scenario that will be paid off at
approximately the same time

Preferred Units - reduces NCN’s Cash
investment to 12.154 million (3.93 percent of
units) with NCN likely to receive significantly
less revenue in exchange for less risk

Annuity Option - calculation at Final Closing
to compare 2006 international rate of return
(IRR) projection of 16.48 percent with those
at Final Closing (around Feb 2012) based on
most current projections at that time. If the
IRR is higher, then no annuity will be paid, but
if the projected IRR is lower, then Manitoba
Hydro will pay NCN an annuity in addition to
what NCN is entitled to under the PDA and
WPR Agreement

Equity Payments - If by final closing, NCN
has paid for 27.5 percent of its units, it will be
able to make additional payments for its cash
equity up to July 3, 2013

Taskinigahp Trust Capital - confirmation
that the compensation paid to NCN can be
used at Final Closing so it will be available
to use for TPC’s cash equity contribution
(approximately $5.7 million).

All these option have been consulted with
NCN Citizens on and off reserve through
small group meetings in NCN and large group
meetings on and off reserve in Thompson,
Leaf and Winnipeg where large groups of
NCN Citizens reside.



OPERATIONAL EMPLOYMENT

NCN and Manitoba Hydro are undertaking a
review of employment opportunities within
Hydro’s ongoing operations to increase
NCN Citizens’ employment within Hydro. A
budget was submitted to Manitoba Hydro
for the phase 1 which will focus on the

skills inventory of NCN Citizens on and off
reserve. NCN has identified the following;
sustainability and financial stability;
establishing a top notch HR department

MONITORING

Socio-economic and
Environmental Monitoring

To monitor predicted and actual
environmental impacts, as specified in

the Environmental Impact Statement, the
Implementation Office hired Mark Linklater
as Socio-economic and Environmental
Coordinator. His responsibilities include
operating a new NCN service company

to provide trained monitoring personnel,
supplies and rental equipment to Manitoba
Hydro and other consultants assisting in
environmental studies within the NCN
Resource Management Area. NCN is also
negotiating to directly contract the new
company to conduct the environmental
monitoring by providing trained staff and
developing internal capabilities. The Socio-
economic & Environmental Coordinator
plays a key role in the Monitoring Advisory
Committee members.

Habitat Alteration Alternative Destruction
(HAAD) and bio-mediation site around
Wuskwatim and with a business spin off for
AOL. Over $50,000 was profited for the
scholarship fund. Approximately 20 jobs
were created for resource user to access
employment opportunities.
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for our Cree Nation and developing a
skilled NCN laborer force. NCN focused

on operational jobs on Wuskwatim, first

of which three NCN Citizens have been
hired on with Manitoba Hydro operations,
and focus on other operational jobs within
Manitoba Hydro operations. Operational
jobs have been postponed until after the
PDA Supplementary Agreement 2 has been
completed.

AOL coordinated a fall and spring Ethinisewin
Tour with NCN Elders and youth had the
opportunity to interact. There are two
Ethinisewin Tours completed on the Project,
one in the spring and one in the summer.
Again the reports are done annually under
the monitoring contract that AOL has in
conjunction with MAC monitoring overview.
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Worker Family Surveys

A follow-up survey was completed by AOL
with assistance from InterGroup consultants
on business survey spin off in Thompson and
NCN. Results of the survey will be reported
later to the Partnership board.

Aski Otutoskeo Ltd. (AOL)

AOL (Aski Otutoskeo Ltd.) is an NCN entity
which operates out of the Wuskwatim
Implementation Office. Some of our main
objectives are to work closely with the
different Consultant groups and the studies
that they are doing. The AOL Company also
utilizes the NCN Resource Users and young
reliable NCN Citizens to help in any of the
field studies that are being done. This will
help our NCN Citizens gain knowledge and
experience on jobs and training opportunities
that come our way through the Wuskwatim
project and its surroundings, for example:
Land, Water, Animals, big/small game
animals, Air, Insects and Birds, etc.

These are the names of the Consultant
groups and a brief description of the studies
that they are involved in at the Wuskwatim
Project:

North/South Consultants - Are the main
Contractors who work with AOL as sub-
contractors, to get NCN Citizens to work on
the many different monitoring studies. The
NCN Citizens also have the opportunity to
rent their own personal equipment such as
boats, motors, trailers, chainsaws, generators
and camping gear to the Consultant groups
if they are needed.

Environment Illimite’ Inc. - Specializing in
Greenhouse gas monitoring (air), Aquatic
monitoring and Sediment Management
(water).

Wildlife Resource Consulting Services
(WRCS) - Specializing in big/small game
animals, and mammals such as; beaver, mink,
muskrat, otter and Caribou studies.

Eco-stem - Shoreline/wetland monitoring
using transplanting of plants to improve on
fish habitat areas.

Native Plant Solutions - Shoreline
re-establishment/stabilization methods
using different types of plants/willows to
help stabilize shorelines (erosion measures).

Red Hen - Training on GPS (Global
Positioning System), camera and video
surveillance on shorelines (Surveying and
Monitoring of the Land).

C.A.M.P. - Studies on fish population,
mercury sampling of fish.

An accurate number of 35 NCN Citizens

have also been employed with fish habitat
compensation and soil bio-engineering work,
which involved planting areas subject to
erosion with native plant species that will
grow to assist with shoreline stabilization. This
year, these jobs lasted about three months.

This work has been done since the 2011-2012
seasons and will continue to be done in 2012.
AOL will also be utilized after work is done
to monitor and determine the success of this
work for future years.

The number of participants varied from
each phase (17-21) NCN Citizens who
included, elders’ youth, technical and
helpers such as, laborers, cooks and people
with the experience and expertise in
knowing the Wuskwatim Lake area and its
surroundings areas.

AOL had secured other contracts with

the General Civil Contractor namely (ONE

- O’Connell - Nelson - EBC) to do the
immediate fore bay clearing of debris, and
clear cutting certain areas. All together 20
more AOL workers were hired to perform
this job, which lasted more than six weeks of
employment.

AOL coordinates an annual monitoring open
house. The annual informational open house
took place at the O.K. school gym and was
relatively successful.



TASKINIGAHP POWER CORPORATION

To protect NCN assets from negative financial circumstances beyond our control related to
the project, NCN has created Taskinigahp Power Corporation as a stand-alone Corporation
100 percent owned by NCN that holds all NCN’s shares in the partnership.

WUSKWATIM PARTNERSHIP we

(Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership)

NCN is a general partner along with
Manitoba Hydro on the project with two NCN
Citizens sitting on the General Partnership
Board, Jimmy Hunter Spence and Councillor
Marcel Moody. Both were re-appointed.

In 2012, the fifth annual Year in Review
report for the Wuskwatim Power Limited
Partnership, which highlights work underway
or completed during the year, was prepared
and distributed to community Members. A
Cree and English audio version of the report
was prepared and is available on CD.

A Monitoring Overview report was prepared
and also published and distributed to
community Members. The report covers
monitoring activities related to the socio-
economic effect (businesses, hiring, etc.)
and environmental studies (i.e. physical
environment, aquatic and terrestrial studies)
in compliance with federal Department and
Fisheries and Oceans and Environment
Canada. It’s an obligation specified in

the Project Development Agreement

and Environmental Impact Statement

and identified at the Clean Environment
Commission hearings. As with the Year in
Review, an English and Cree audio version
of the report was prepared and is available
on CD.
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ACCESS PROTOCOL FOR WUSKWATIM
AREA DURING OPERATIONS

Because the access road has made the NCN and Manitoba Hydro have been
Wuskwatim area accessible, NCN and discussing the operational phase of the
Manitoba Hydro have agreed to have a private road. An agreement is determined
Wuskwatim access protocol to control to be completed by the end of 2012. NCN
and define access to the area. A brochure is directly negotiating on behalf of NCN/
outlining the protocol and a Wuskwatim SODEXHO for security services. The

Access form has been developed and Management is almost as identical to the
are available from the Wuskwatim Access Management protocol during the
Implementation Office. NCN Citizens wishing  construction phase. The partnership will

to access the area for traditional activities review the access management in five years
(medicine gathering or trapping) should to determine if it is feasible and required to
contact the Implementation Office to obtain have security service. Security will have staff
a permit, and the office will contact the 24/7 with security cameras installed.

access road gatehouse to advise that the
Members will be coming to the area.

TRANSMISSION LINE PROJECT

The control buildings at Birch tree and
Wuskwatim switching stations have been
installed. Installation of electrical apparatus is
to Thompson Birch tree Station, Wuskwatim
Switching Station and Herblet Lake Station.
The electrical equipment foundation work

at Ralls Island has been completed. The
installation of overhead bus work started in
the spring of 2010. The transmission project
is on schedule and has been completed.




Community Approval Process

RESULTS OF THE 2013 COMMUNITY
APPROVAL & INVOLVEMENT PROCESS

In accordance with Article 3.5 and 8.0 of the
Nisichawayasihk Trust Indenture and Article
3.3 and 8.0 of the Taskinigahp Trust, meetings
and consultations were held with community
members to determine their views on how
moneys from both Trusts should be spent
during the 2013 fiscal year.

The CAP/CIP Review Committee initiates the
first part of the Community Approval and
Involvement Process. The CAP/CIP Review
Committee reviews all applications for
funding in terms of the established CAP/CIP
criteria.

The CAP/CIP Committee comprises of Roslyn
Moore, Yvonne Hart, Jemima Yetman, Alan
Linklater, Dorothy Linklater, Jeremiah Spence,
Councillors Joe Moose, Pat Linklater and Ron
D. Spence.

The CAP/CIP Committee had a series of five
meetings to review funding applications and
prepared a recommended 2013 CAP/CIP
Budget for Chief & Council’s consideration
and approval.

Review of Applications

1) A two day Initial Review of Funding
Applications meeting was held in Thompson
to review the CAP/CIP guidelines as done in
previous years, specifically in the following
provisions:

m Elections of Officers (Chair, Vice Chair)

m Quorum of Committee

m Conflict of Interest Guidelines.

After reviewing the CAP/CIP Guidelines, the
committee proceeded to electing the officers,

with Roslyn Moore elected as Chair and
Jeremiah Spence elected as Vice Chair.
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Prior to reviewing the application,

the committee reviewed and took

into consideration NCN’s Community
Development Plan and Chief & Council’s
2010 Community Priorities. The Committee
reviewed and ranked each application in
order of priorities. The members shared
guestions or concerns with individual
applications and then prepared questions
for each application to address at the
Community Presentation Meeting.

To ensure a fair process the conflict of
interest guidelines were factored into
application assigned. If a committee member
was in a conflict of interest situation, that
individual declared it and did not participate
in the rating of the specific application, but
did participate in the discussions.

2) The Committee reconvened for three
days to deliberate the Applications. Each
application was rated in accordance to
criteria established on the score card, and a
minimum of three questions were prepared
for each application.

3) A two day Application Presentation
Community Meeting was conducted to allow
applicants to present their applications.

The Committee members assessed
applications using a scorecard based

on the following criteria:

m Benefits to the Community
m Innovation

m Management Capability

m Budget

m Evaluation.

27



28

The Community also gave the members present an opportunity to rate the presenters on
the score card.

4) A three day meeting was held to Select Programs/Projects and to prepare
a recommended budget. The Committee reviewed the funds available for the
Nisichawayasihk & Taskinigahp Trusts which were as follows:

FUNDING SOURCE FUNDS AVAILABLE

Nisichawayasihk Trust 1,834,847.13
Investment & Heritage Account 19,139.11
Recreation Sub-Account 52,229.94
Re-Disclosure of Funds 123,192.89
Taskinigahp Trust Assets 120,500.00
Wuskwatim TDF 460,670.00
Settlement Proceeds (Income Earned) 225,272.00

Re-Disclosure of Funds

The CAP/CIP Committee reviewed all

the programs/projects that were funded
throughout the years. There were some
programs that had unused funds, or were
inactive, and some managers were contacted
via letter, but NCN Trust Office did not
receive a response. The bulk of the re-
disclosure of funds came for the Otohowin
Gas Bar Il, upon consultation with the
Manager of the Nelson House Development
Corporation. He informed the Committee
that these funds were not required
immediately due to pending land issues.

As a result these funds were used for the
2013 CAP/CIP Budget.

The Manitoba Hydro bond matured on
June 30, 2013, and as a result the main
trust only generated six months of income.
With the limited distribution of funds it was
challenging for the Committee to allocate.

The Committee then proceeded to reviewing
the assessment results of three sessions. The
final step of the process was allocating funds
in the following order:

m Mandatory funded programs in accordance
with the two agreements

m Applications rated high
m Applications based on community needs.

This process prepared the 2013
recommended budget.




BOND EXTENSION &
WATER RENTAL REBATE

Additional funding was allocated from interest earned on the $40-million Manitoba Hydro
Bond extension and funding received from Water Rental Rebate. The funds available from
the Nisichawayasihk Trust and Taskinigahp Trust were as follows:

FUNDING SOURCE FUNDS AVAILABLE

Manitoba Hydro Bond Extension Interest $1,150,000.00
Water Power Rental Rebate $829,446.53

On June 6, 2013 the CAP/CIP Committee reconvened to review the initial applications
received and followed the same process initiated at the beginning of the year. This process
prepared a recommended budget for Chief & Council’s consideration and approval.
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COMMUNITY APPROVAL PROCESS
BUDGET 2013

Nisichawayasihk Trust

PROGRAM SUB-PROGRAM BUDGET IN $
ADMINISTRATION Administration 350,000.00
Corporate Trustee 32,500.00
Nelson House Trustees 14,400.00
Professional Services 50,000.00
Arena O & M 55,000.00
Claims Program 50,000.00
Community Approval Process 30,000.00
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Human Resource Officer 22,500.00
NCN Achimowin Radio 100,000.00
Off Reserve Assistance Program 20,000.00
Summer Student Employment 50,000.00
EDUCATION Nutrition Program 20,000.00
Post-Secondary Funding 50,000.00
Special Education Program 50,000.00
HOUSING Housing Equity Fund 100,000.00
JUSTICE NCN Justice Program 64,900.00
NCN Emergency Services 275,000.00
PUBLIC WORKS Grave Yard Maintenance 10,000.00
Tractor Repairs 20,000.00
Community Clean Up 5,000.00
Steel Garbage Bins 24,000.00
Repair & Restore St. Patrick’s 14.000.00

Church
SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT NCN Parks & Recreation 340,000.00
Rediscoveries of Families Project 40,000.00
FCWC Elders Program 20,000.00
Promoting Wellnc_as.,s & Community 72.309.07

Spirit
OTHER PROGRAMS Elders Subsidy 133,800.00
NCN Christmas Cheer Board 30,000.00




MANITOBA HYDRO BOND EXTENSION
CAP BUDGET 2013

PRO D A B-PRO RA z >
ADMINISTRATION Administration 50,000.00
Corporate Trustee 37,500.00
Nelson House Trustees 14,522.00
Community Approval Process 7,500.00
Trust Amalgamation 100,000.00
CAPITAL PROJECTS United Church Renovations 10,000.00
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Wuskwatim Equity 500,000.00
NCN Achimowin Radio 15,000.00
EDUCATION Nutrition Program 10,000.00
Post-Secondary Funding 10,000.00
HOUSING Housing Equity Fund 100,000.00
JUSTICE NCN Emergency Services 80,431.07
PUBLIC WORKS New Roof & Siding of St. Patrick 10.000.00

Church

Tractor Equipment 8,000.00
Community Clean Up 5,000.00
SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT NCN Parks & Recreation 150,000.00
Rediscoveries of Families Project 20,000.00
FCWC Elders Program 10,000.00
OTHER PROGRAMS Elders Subsidy (Off Reserve) 2,046.93
NCN Christmas Cheer Board 10,000.00
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Implementation Agreement
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ADMINISTRATION

The NCN Trust Office administers both the
Nisichawayasihk and Taskinigahp Trusts.
Administration funds are allocated annually
for the purpose of administering and
implementing programs funded under the
Nisichawayasihk and Taskinigahp Trust, as
well as to ensure that the provisions of the
1996 NFA Implementation Agreement and
the 2006 Wuskwatim Project Development
Agreement was appropriately fulfilled.

To ensure effective administration and
implementation of all provisions of the
NFA and PDA, additional funding is
allocated to the Trust office annually
for the following programs:

m Administration - Funding is allocated
to the NCN Trust Office to provide
continuous employment for eight full-time

employees and operation and maintenance

of Trust Office buildings and storage.
Kadas Solutions is retained as the
webmaster to develop, update and
host the Trust Office Website. Other
Trust Office expenditures included
purchasing new office furniture for
the Finance Department, renovation
of the storage area, crawl space, and
roof repairs.

m Professional Services - for
legal, financial, consulting and
professional services.

m Auditing - for semi-annual
and annual financial audited
statements.

m Corporate & Nelson House Trustees
- to administer the terms of the trust
indentures, keep accurate financial
statements, conduct the business
and invest assets of the trust.

m CAP/CIP Process - to conduct
a comprehensive community
consultation process to allocate trust
funds to community programs.

m Arena O & M - in accordance to Article 1
of the NFA, NCN is obligated to contribute
10 percent of the Arena’s Annual Budget.

m Claims Program - funds are allocated
on an annual basis to the Claims
Account from the funds available for the
Nisichawayasihk and Taskinigahp Trusts, to
ensure that a minimum yearly balance of
$50,000 is maintained. Funds are used to
compensate an NCN Citizen (claimant) for
loss or damages caused by or attributable
to the adverse effects of the Churchill
River Diversion or the Wuskwatim Project
and the Wuskwatim Project Related
Transmission Facilities. Claims officers as
well as an alternate are retained to deal
with all claims matters for both trusts.




Capital Projects

UNITED CHURCH RENOVATIONS

From Nisichawayasihk Trust funds available for distribution in year 2013, $10,000 was
allocated to the United Church for renovations.

Funds were used to replace damaged siding on the outside of United Church and other
necessary repairs on the inside of church.

4
A
i
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Economic Development

HUMAN RESOURCE SPECIALIST

From Nisichawayasihk Trust funds available compensation and benefits, conflict

for distribution in year 2013, $22,500 resolution, job descriptions development and
was allocated to the Human Resource assistance with policy development. The HR
Department to partially fund the position Specialist also provides advice and support
of a Human Resource Specialist. The HR to supervisors, managers and staff selection
Specialist provides support for various committees to ensure they have accurate
Human Resource functions including and timely information for making
recruitment, retention, training and effective decisions.

development, performance monitoring,

NCN ACHIMOWIN RADIO PROGRAM

From Nisichawayasihk Trust Funds available has advocated significant improvements in

for distribution for the year 2013, $115,000 the local radio program delivery.
was allocated to the NCN Achimowin Radio
Program. The 98.1 NCN CREE FM local The Radio Station management has achieved

radio continues to be a vital communication ~ Most of its operational plan for the year,
service to the NCN membership. With however they have faced a few barriers

great effort, the radio station continues requiring some sacrifices to ensure the

to serve the community with a variety operation stays within its budgetary limits.
of programming such as community
announcements, news, weather, current
events and live broadcasts of Chief and
Council’s General Assembilies.

The Station had purchased new broadcasting
equipment which includes a remote
transmitter and a receiver. This equipment
will be used for live broadcasts of general
assemblies, festivals, gospel jams, etc. It

will provide a much clearer sound for those
listening on the radio. NCN Citizens living
outside of the community can tune in to the
radio, through on-line streaming, at its own
website www.ncnradio.ca.

The main objective of the NCN Achimowin
Radio Program is to become financially
sustainable. To achieve this objective,
management has generated revenue through
advertising on the radio and website, airtime
sales and hosting local bingos.

Feedback from community members,
organizations, staff and on-line comments
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OFF RESERVE

ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

From Nisichawayasihk Trust funds available
for distribution for the year 2013, $20,000
was allocated to the Off Reserve Assistance
Program administered by the NCN
Government Office.

The Off Reserve Assistance Program
provides financial assistance to NCN Citizens
living outside our traditional territory by
providing emergency financial assistance
and supports those who require support

to meet their special circumstances that
demonstrates the need for assistance.

The financial support is available on a one

time basis and grants are awarded from a
minimum of $100 to a maximum of $500.

NCN receives individual letters of request for
financial assistance. The Finance Committee
review all requests and decides on the merit
of each request as to whether a person is
eligible and the amount a person should be
awarded.

During the time of this reporting period the
NCN Trust Office did not receive the statistics
on how many NCN Citizens benefited from
the program.

_——— —
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SUMMER STUDENT EMPLOYMENT PROGRAM

From Nisichawayasihk Trust funds available
for distribution for the year 2013, $50,000
was allocated to the annual budget of the
Human Resource Department to partially
fund the Summer Student Program. The
Summer Student Program assists in the
following areas:

m Supports skills acquisition through the
provision of wage subsidies for short-term
work experience

m Assists secondary and post-secondary
students to prepare for future entry into
the labour market by facilitating access to
summer employment

m Support NCN students to earn wages for
post-secondary financing.

This program runs in partnership with INAC,
Trust Office and other NCN organizations
during the summer months of each year.
Through this program, Human Resource
Department hired a Summer Student
Coordinator and placed students in the work
force for temporary summer jobs for eight
weeks. The youth were placed in a working
environment of their choice such as; clerical,

file clerk, finance, public works, carpentry,
plumbing, etc.

Additionally, younger students were hired

as part of “The Earth Team.” A selection of
students were hired for period of four weeks,
and then a rotation of another selection of
students were hired. “The Earth

Team” focused on .

beautifying the / \
community.

The HR Department
hired a total of

50 students. This
was an exciting
time of the year

for NCN youth as
they earn wages
and save money to
pay for university
education and, :

at the same time, \ /
make connections

with their future

employers. This also provides them a unique
opportunity to explore career options.

WUSKWATIM EQUITY PROJECT

From Nisichawayasihk Trust funds

available for distribution for the year 2013,
$500,000 was allocated to the Wuskwatim
Equity Project. In March of 2013, the
Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation made a
further contribution of $2,800,000 from
the compensation funds that were allocated
from the 2012 CAP/CIP Budget to the
Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership.

To date, NCN contributed $16,428,000 in
funds to Manitoba Hydro on behalf of the
Taskinigahp Power Corporation (TPC) as
part of their investment in Wuskwatim Power
Limited Partnership. NCN’s required equity
of $22,000,000, according to the terms of
the Project Development Agreement (PDA)
Supplement Il, subject to its execution and
signing, brings NCN to within $5,572,000 of
its total required equity.



NUTRITION PROGRAM

From annual earnings of Nisichawayasihk
Trust and funds available for distribution in
2013, $30,000 was allocated to the Nutrition
Program administered by the Nelson House
Education Authority.

The main objective for the funds is to
provide healthy, nutritious meals for about
800 students in our local school system.

A hungry child cannot learn and therefore

is the common responsibility of the
community to arrange and provide for basic
needs of every child.

During the time of this reporting period
the NCN Trust Office did not receive the
statistics on how many NCN Citizens
benefited from the program.

POST-SECONDARY PROGRAM

From annual earnings of Nisichawayasihk Trust
and funds available for distribution in 2013,
$60,000 was allocated to the annual budget
of the Nelson House Education Authority to
support the Post-Secondary Program.

The current post-secondary guidelines for

living allowance are far below the cost of living.
Therefore it is the objective of NHEA to subsidize
and assist students who receive inadequate post-
secondary living allowances and travel to and
from post-secondary institutions.

SPECIAL EDUCATION

From annual earnings of Nisichawayasihk Trust
and funds available for distribution in 2013,
$50,000 was allocated to the annual budget
of the Nelson House Education Authority to
support the Special Education Program.

These funds were made available to improve
the quality of education and support services
for special needs students in the local school.
Objectives of the Special Education Program
that were achieved in the 2013 year are

as follows:

m Assessment and Identification of
students with special needs - to date 250
individualized educational programs have
been in place on students.

m Psychological Educational Assessments
- 25 assessments were completed by
Dr. Craig in 2013.

m Individualized Education Programs to
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Eligible students receive:
m $75 per student if student has dependants
m $50 per student if student is single.

During the time of this reporting period
the NCN Trust Office did not receive the
statistics on how many NCN Citizens
benefited from the program.

PROGRAM

address the needs of students who are
identified as level 2 and level 3 - 200
individualized education plans have
been developed.

m Resource Support and support materials -
26 Educational Assistants have been hired
along with hallway monitors, two guidance
counsellors and a SLP assistant.

The program continues to retain partnerships
with resources in the community and agencies
such as CNIB, FNIB, and Manitoba Association
for Deaf & Hard of Hearing, MFNERC, FASD
Community Coordinator, Medicine Lodge,
Family & Community Wellness Center,

Local Nursing Station, Personal Care Home,
ATEC, and Burntwood Health Care Centre.
Representatives from partner organizations
have visited the school and continue to

be involved each month with the special
needs children.
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HOUSING EQUITY FUND

From annual earnings of Nisichawayasihk
Trust and funds available for distribution in
2013, $200,000 was allocated to the annual
budget of the Nisichawayasihk Housing
Authority for the Home Equity Fund.

The overall intent of this project is to
secure mortgage loans for successful

housing applicants.

During the time of this reporting period
the NCN Trust Office did not receive the
statistics on how many NCN Citizens

benefited from the program.

Vision Statement



Justice

NCN JUSTICE PROGRAM

From annual earnings of Nisichawayasihk
Trust and funds available for distribution in
2013, $64,900 was allocated to the annual
budget of the Nisichawayasihk Cree
Nation to financially support the NCN
Justice Program.

The integrated essential services include
the Community Justice Group, NCN
Policing Service and Probation Services.
The coordination of these services achieved
better results in combating crime in

the community.

Community Justice Group

The Community Justice Group (CJG)
consists of five appointed members by
Chief and Council, two RCMP members,
Justice Coordinator, Health/Justice
Director and Probations Worker. The

CJG Committee’s mandate is to provide
alternative justice in the community by
developing crime-prevention and restorative
initiatives for the offender, victims, families,
support groups, police, local resources
and/or individuals affected by the offence.
The CJG Committee meet regularly to
review justice-related matters referred

to them by Chief and Council, the NCN
Community Police, RCMP/FNCPS, Court
System or community members.

The CJG also implements and coordinates
the following services:

m Provides a community consultation
function with the RCMP. The Sergeant
or Corporal of the RCMP attends the
justice meetings to provide RCMP
statistic reports and provide background
information on referrals before the
Justice Group

m Provide Community Corrections Services
by receiving reports from the courts on
those who are referred to for diversions,
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provide reports to the judge on

the status of individuals on those
referred to the CJG. The Justice
Coordinator attends court to obtain
referrals from first time offenders

m Provides Chief & Council
with recommendations.

NCN Policing Services

The NCN Police carry out spot checks and
operates 24 hours, seven days a week, to
check vehicles for banned substances, illegal
weapons and also enforce the Band Council
Resolutions on banishment orders to
remove any non-band or band member who
pose a risk or danger to the Community.
NCN Police assist the RCMP with crime
prevention and criminal code offences
related to intoxicated persons, the Highway
Traffic Act and the Off Road Vehicle Act,
which they have authority to enforce and
issue tickets. They also conduct Knock n
Talks with the assistance of RCMP. The NCN
Policing Services employ four full-time
constables and three relief workers.

Probation Services

Probation Services networks with local
organizations, Crown Attorney, Correction
Institutes and resources to enable
individuals to serve their probation order or
their conditional sentence in the community.

Community Justice Worker

The Community Justice Worker is
accountable and reports to MKO Justice
Worker and Chief & Council, and is
responsible for the overall management
of pre- and post-charge referrals from the
courts and ensures matters are resolved
through the community processes.
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NCN EMERGENCY
SERVICES

From annual earnings of Nisichawayasihk
Trust and funds available for distribution
in 2013, $355,431.07 was allocated to the
annual budget of the Nisichawayasihk
Cree Nation to financially support the
NCN Emergency Services Program.

The Fire and Emergency Services
Department provides immediate
responses to fire and other urgent
emergencies. They are available 24 hours a
day and seven days a week. The department
complements a fire chief, deputy chief,
engages four on call Fire Personnel

to respond to fires only, four full-time
dispatchers and four ambulance technicians.




Public Works

REPAIR ROOF & SIDING OF ST. PATRICK’S
ROMAN CATHOLIC CHURCH

From the Nisichawayasihk Trust funds available for distribution in year 2013, $10,000 was
allocated to the St. Patrick Roman Catholic Mission Church. These funds were used to fix the
roof of the church only. There was not enough funds to complete the siding of the church.

These repairs were vital to the safety of the 40 - 70 people who attend church to worship and
pray together on Sundays. The community spirit of the people is wonderful and our time of
prayer together is peaceful and nourishing. We are now working to raise money to repair the
outside of the church.

TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT REPAIRS

From the Nisichawayasihk Trust funds available for distribution in
year 2013, $20,000 was allocated to the Public Works Department
Tractor Repairs.

Funds were supposed to be used to repair the tracks and wheels
on the skid steer, however the quotes obtained from business
were extremely high, the costs of parts were higher than what the
Public Works Manager expected. The manager will continue to
seek out quotes preferably at lower costs.

COMMUNITY CLEAN UP

From the Nisichawayasihk Trust funds available
for distribution in year 2013, $10,000 was
allocated to the Public Works Department

for an annual Community Clean up.

The annual community clean up was
completed by mid-June, was another
successful event. The Public works Crew
collected approximately five thousand
garbage bags.
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GRAVE YARD MAINTENANCE g

From the Nisichawayasihk Trust During the time of this reporting period the
funds available for distribution in year NCN Trust Office did not receive a report on
2013, $10,000 was allocated to the the status of the project.

Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation for
the maintenance of all graveyards
in the community.

STEEL GARBAGE BINS

From the Nisichawayasihk Trust funds
available for distribution in year 2013, r
$24,000 was allocated to the annual budget
of the NCN Public Works Department to its
Solid Waste Management Program. These
funds were used to purchase 40 steel bins
for proper disposal of garbage.




Social Development

NCN PARKS & RECREATION PROGRAM

From the Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation
Trust funds available for distribution in
2013, $490,000 was allocated to the NCN
Parks & Recreation Program to carry out
its objectives as outlined in their 2013
operational plan.

The Parks & Recreation Program operates
under supervision of a five member board.
The board’s responsibility is to develop a
mission statement, short and long-term goals
& objectives, and an operational program
plan that will meet the needs of all NCN
Citizens residing on reserve.

The NPR Board, in conjunction with the
Parks & Recreation Superintendent, has had
considerable amount of planning sessions to
determine which programs would be offered
for the 2013 budget year. Some of their
priorities are as follows:

m Ensure there are opportunities for the
entire community to be engaged with a
focus on youth and family involvement.

m Incorporate events that promote healthy,
active living.

m Include activities that incorporate culture
and traditions beginning at an early age.

m Competitions, sporting events to focus
on fun and recreation. Parks & Recreation
Program organized and
coordinated
the various
sporting events
and activities
throughout the
year and to
narrate a few
they are as
follows:
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January to March
m Basketball Program

m Intramurals (Cup Stacking, Lacrosse &
Dodge ball)

m Evening Basketball Program
m Badminton Program

m Volleyball Program

m World Series of Sports

m Broom Ball Program

m Sponge Puck Hockey Program
m Minor Hockey Program

m Swimming Program

m Children’s Day

m Girls Day

m Family Fishing Derby

m Ice Fishing Derby

m Annual Top Student Award Trip
to Brandon, Manitoba.
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April to June

m Staff Fish Derby

m Annual Volleyball Tournament

m NCN Children’s Day

m Penny Drive

m Mother’s Day Mini-Festival

m Pre-Season Slow-Pitch Tournament
m Father’s Day Mini-Festival

m Bicycle Rodeo.

July to December

m Youth Basketball Program

m Intramurals

m Volleyball Competitions Program
m Open Gym Nights

m Recreation Symposium

m Track & Field

m Soccer Program

m Youth Volleyball Program

m Terry Fox Run

m Camping Expeditions at Osik Lake
m NAIG Soft Ball Tryouts

m Speed Skating Competition

m Sponge Hockey Tournament

m Children’s Day

m Weight Training & MMA -
Self Defence Program

m Christmas Events.

The Parks & Recreation Program was not
limited to the aforementioned programs.
Donations and sponsorships were provided
to youth participating in sports or leagues
outside of the community, tournaments and
other recreational events for teams of all
age groups.

The Parks & Recreation Program is also
responsible for maintaining all the parks and
ball fields in the community.




REDISCOVERIES OF FAMILIES PROGRAM (rDF)

From the Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation

Trust funds available for distribution in

2013, $60,000 was allocated to the annual
budget of the Family and Community
Wellness Centre to operate its Rediscoveries
of Families Program and to carry out its
objectives as outlined in their 2013
operational plan.

The RDF Program achieved its objectives as
set out in its operational work plan with the
main focus being on six areas:

m “Nehethawe Mithawayawin” to focus on
using the Cree knowledge and traditional
Ceremonies as a way of promoting pride in
our cultural identity for health and wellness.
Families were taken to various ceremonies
in Manitoba such as the sun dance
ceremony. Weekly sweat lodge ceremonies
were provided by different elders in the
community.

m Provide families with the support required
to identify family strengths and other
issues that have had a negative impact on
family functioning, and to find practical
solutions that can be used in everyday life.
Families were provided with workshop
sessions that educated them on parenting
skills; traditional life cycle, enhancing
couple relationships, kinship and relational
systems. Raise awareness of our values,
beliefs, and traditions. Relating to the
relationships in their families.

m Reconnecting with the land as a source
of food, medicine and spirituality. Despite
being evacuated from out of the camp site
of Leftrook Lake, we explored different
resource areas of our community to pick
medicine and berries. Children enjoyed
swimming and exploring the land. Being
with nature is a natural therapeutic resource
to all. Sweat lodge ceremonies and building
of the teaching lodge were all part of the
spiritual practices.
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m To provide traditional teachings that allows
families to begin to relate to each other in
a kinship relationship system and create
an understanding of each other’s roles and
responsibilities in their own family unit.
Families were taught how to put a family
genogram of their family together. They
are taught in both Cree and English the
relational system and how to refer to
their relatives.

m Raise awareness of values, beliefs,
and traditions as these relate to their
relationships in their families. While at
camp, youth, children and parents naturally
followed our Cree value and belief system
such as minisiwin and showing respect to
each other.

m To meet provincial regulations on
delivery of services. There were a series
of boat safety courses and first aid to
provide community members of NCN
boat safety. A swimming safety course
was also implemented.
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FCWC ELDERS PROGRAM

From the Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation

Trust funds available for distribution in 2013,
$30,000 was allocated to the annual budget
of the Family and Community Wellness
Centre to operate its Elders Program and to
carry out its objectives as outlined in their
2013 operational plan.

The Elders Program achieved its objectives as

set out in its operational work plan with the
main focus being on four areas:

m To provide support, promote and sustain
healthy relationships with the elders. The
program implemented activities with the
elders such as; elders day & field events,
police academy, elders Halloween party,
sightseeing, etc.

m To provide traditional teachings that

PROMOTING
WELLNESS

& COMMUNITY
SPIRIT

From the Nisichawayasihk Trust funds
available for distribution in 2013,
$72,309.07 was allocated to the annual
budget of the Gilbert McDonald Arena to
purchase and install an underlay and turf
inside the arena.

The objective is to turn the arena into a
year-round sporting complex and gathering
place for NCN Citizens and visitors.

allow participations to share knowledge
that they have with others. The program
implemented outings with elders such
as berry picking, medicine picking,
harvesting, etc.

m To promote healthy living to participants.
The program implemented activities
such as planting vegetables, awareness
workshops on nutrition and diabetes and
nutrition bingo.

m To educate community members on
traditional teachings aimed at promoting
cultural identity while learning the norms of
our ancestors. The program implemented
outings with elders such as Elders duck
preparing and cooking ducks, gathering
of elders for bannock and tea, sun dance
ceremonies and other cultural ceremonies.




Other

ELDERS SUBSIDY ON RESERVE PROGRAM

From the Nisichawayasihk Trust funds costs of hydro bills. A total of 117 elders were
available for distribution in 2013, $133,800 subsidized in 2013.
was allocated to NCN Trust Office to provide

community elders with a monthly subsidy The Elder Subsidy Program is a unique

of $100. program design specifically for elders
residing on the Nisichawayasihk Cree
The subsidy is to supplement their pensions Nation (reserve).

and other benefits, and to assist with the high

NCN CHRISTMAS CHEERBOARD

The Nelson House Christmas Cheer board
continues its commitment to ensuring that
each child receives a gift on Christmas
morning and each family has a hot meal on
Christmas day.

2013 was a very busy and successful year
for the NCN Christmas Cheer board,

with the $40,000 received from the
Nisichawayasihk Trust and donations
received from various organizations; we
were able to meet our objectives.

The Nelson House Christmas Cheer
board provided 858 gifts for children,
newborn to 12 years of age living in the
community and 460 food hampers to
each household.

The Nelson House Christmas Cheer board
is fortunate to have volunteers from the
community, Roman Catholic Church Group
whom worked long hours wrapping,
organizing the Christmas gifts into age
categories and preparing for delivery.
Other dedicated volunteers such as RCMP
members, Trust Office Staff, NCN Staff and
students from the school faced the cold and
slippery roads to ensure that the Christmas
gifts and food hampers were delivered to all
the homes. It is these volunteers that truly
make the Christmas Cheer board such a
special community based operation.
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TASKINIGAHP TRUSTEES
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James Warren Darcy Linklater Jr.

Patrick Linklater Jacqueline Hunter

CORPORATE TRUSTEE

The Canada Trust Company (TD Waterhouse Private Trust)

Taskinigahp Trust

The Taskinigahp Trust

was established in June
2006. The duties and
responsibilities of the
Trustees are contained

in the Trust Indenture,
which was created by

the Nisichawayasihk Cree
Nation to administer
funds associated with

the Wuskwatim Dam
Project. The Trust currently
is comprised of four
accounts, namely the
Community Development
Account, Claims Account,
Resource Account and the
Resource Sub-Account.

Each year the Trustees

are required to provide
Chief and Council and,
upon request, any member
of Nisichawayasihk Cree
Nation, with an annual
report on the financial
operations of the Trust.
The report must cover

the period from January
1to December 31 of the
previous year, and must
include the Trust Auditor’s
report and opinion, any
other special audit report
and opinions requested by
the Trustees and narrative
report on the expenditures
from the Trust and the
Trust operations including
how the Transmission
Benefits were used.



FINANCIAL OPERATIONS REPORT

Capital Payments Received
by the Trust

Initial settlement proceeds in the amount
of $5,700,000 were received from
Manitoba Hydro in accordance with the
NCN Adverse Effects Agreement.

Transmission Benefits

Transmission Benefits, in the amount of
$310,019, were received for the period. Of this
amount, 75 percent ($232,514) is available for
Resource projects in the year received and

25 percent ($77,505) is retained to generate
future income.

Water Rental Payments

Water Rental Payments totaled $1,641,054
for the year. Of this amount, 90 percent
($1,474,949) is available in the year received
for community programs and services and 10
percent ($164,105) is credited to the Seven
Generations Growth Account for future uses.

Revenue Received and
Generated by the Trust

The total interest generated and net capital
gains realized for the period from Trust
investments was $129,359.

Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation

A

Capital Payments Disbursed
from the Trust

Capital payments paid to NCN totaled
$1,635,889. Of this amount, $1,201,517
represents payments from the Community
Development Account, which was applied
towards various projects approved by CIP;
$419,372 represents payments from the
Resource Account to the Fisher and Trappers
Association and $15,000 from the Claims
Account for damage to personal property.

Investment Activities
of the Trust

The settlement proceeds were invested

in a laddered bond portfolio consisting of
Federal and Provincial Government bonds
and corporate bonds which meet the
investment parameters of the Trust Indenture.
All investment decisions, with the exception
of short-term investments, require the
approval of the NCN Trustees. The sale of
any investments requires 21 days notice to be
provided to Chief and Council and Members.

Investment held at
December 31, 2013

As at December 31, 2013 the Trust had a total
value of $4,402,517. The Auditor’s financial
report and opinion are attached.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT PROCESS
BUDGET 2013

Taskinigahp Trust

PROGRAM SUB-PROGRAM BUDGET IN $
APMINISTRATION (SociaI-Cu?fu?gfgéssifftsuaI Issues) 100,000.00
Claims Program 15,000.00

Annual Audit Fees 20,000.00

Corporate Trustee 26,250.00

Community Involvement Process 30,000.00

Professional Services 40,000.00

Nelson House Trustees 14,400.00

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Wuskwatim Equity 2,000,000.00
EDUCATION S;:‘:f:; 5#2‘:;.:;' 150,000.00
ATECO &M 49,000.00

RESOURCE & LAND USE Trappers Program 100,000.00
Fisherman Association 100,000.00

J.M. Elders Traditional Program 110,670.00

Country Foods Program 100,000.00

NCN Resource Management 50,000.00

SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT Promoting WZ'L?ﬁfS Community 1122.00

Capital Assets were allocated for Wuskwatim Business Equity Development of $2,000,000,
funding will be pending on the referendum results on the Taskinigahp Trust Amendments
and Social Cultural & Spiritual Issues of $100,000, funding will be accessed from the Adverse
Effects Payments, under 6.4.12 of the Project Development Agreement as NCN'’s contribution.
These amounts do not form part of the 2013 CIP Recommended Budget, but has to go
through the community involvement process.



WATER RENTAL & LAND REBATE
CIP BUDGET 2013

Taskinigahp Trust

PROGRAM SUB-PROGRAM BUDGETIN $

ADMINISTRATION Administration Costs 8,000.00

Community Involvement Process 7,500.00

Transmission Benefits 49,335.00

CAPITAL PROJECTS O.K. School Roof 200,000.00

EDUCATION Student Supports - 50,000.00
Peetapun Project

ATEC O &M 150,089.53

RESOURCE & LAND USE Trappers Program 25,000.00

Fisherman Association 25,000.00

PUBLIC WORKS J.M. Elders Traditional Program 50,000.00

Country Foods Program 100,000.00

SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT Promoting Wegr;?rsi: & Community 66,568.93

OTHER PROGRAMS Elders Subsidy (Off Reserve) 97,953.07

TOTAL 2015 $829,446.53

CAP/CIP BUDGET




Capital Projects

O.K. SCHOOL ROOF REPAIRS

From annual earnings of Taskinigahp Trust The Bearpaw’s Engineering & Construction

and funds available for distribution in 2013, used services to the maximum extent

$200,000 was allocated to the Nelson House possible such as local labour. They also

Education Authority for roof repairs at the purchased supplies and materials locally

O.K. Elementary School. fromm Meetah Building Supplies and services
from NCLP.

The removal and replacement of the school
roof project was completed by Bearpaw’s
Engineering & Construction. The project
was initiated and completed within the
timeframes and budgets allocated.




Economic Development

WUSKWATIM EQUITY

Funds in the amount of $2,000,000 from
the Taskinigahp Adverse Effects Settlement
Proceeds were allocated to the Wuskwatim
Equity Project. These funds do not form
part of the annual budget and can only be
accessed pending the referendum results of
the Taskinigahp Trust Amendments.
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STUDENT SUPPORTS (PEETAPUN PROJECT)

From annual earnings of Taskinigahp Trust
and funds available for distribution in 2013,
$200,000 was allocated to the Atoskiwin
Training & Education Centre to carry out its
objectives as outlined in their 2013 Student
Supports operational plan.

Peetapun Student Supports Project achieved
its objectives as set out in its operational

work plan with the main focus being on
three areas:

m Increase participation of NCN Citizens in
educational and training programs

m Raise academic standards of ATEC
Programming

m To facilitate a Balance Lifestyle Program.

ATEC OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE

From annual earnings of Taskinigahp Trust
and funds available for distribution in 2013,
$199,089.53 was allocated to the Atoskiwin

Training & Education Centre to assist with the

operations and maintenance costs of
the Centre.

ATEC O & M achieved its objectives as set
out in its operational work plan with the
main focus being on three areas:

m Investing in our people - by delivering the
appropriate courses that fosters growth
and development academically.

m Provide student support - by providing
day care services, internet services, and
transportation and providing school
supplies.

= Maintain ATEC Building - annual
maintenance of heating and ventilation
inspections to satisfy the provincial
regulations and to meet the required
annual insurance premium coverage.
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Resource & Land Use

COUNTRY FOODS PROGRAM

From the Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation that has five cabins,
Trust funds available for distribution in 2013, communal teepee
$200,000 was allocated to the Country and a cook shack.
Foods Program to carry out its objectives as /
outlined in their 2013 operational plan. As specified in the -

table below, the
The Country Foods Program operates year program distributed 2062.86 pounds of wild
round and employs a program manager and food and served 628 community members.
five hard-working and dedicated full-time The program also harvested 3,220.83 pounds
employees. The employees provide all the of wild food. The wild food consisted of

expertise to ensure that traditional foods are whitefish, jackfish, sucker heads, smoked red
available to the Distribution Centre. They also  mullets, moose meat, caribou meat, rabbit,
maintain the Leftrook Lake Camping facility geese, ducks and assorted berries.

JACK MOORE ELDERS
TRADITIONAL PROGRAM

From the Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation The handicrafts made by the elders of the
Trust funds available for distribution in 2013, program are put in the display case at the
$160,670 was allocated to the Jack Moore Family & Community Wellness Centre.
Elders Traditional Program (ETP) to carry They are available for sale to the public at
out its objectives as outlined in their 2013 a reasonable price. Proceeds from the sales
operational plan. go towards purchasing more material and
equipment for the program. The handicrafts
The ETP employs a Coordinator, elders’ have generated a total amount of $1,950 in
supervisor, three elders and three elder’s sales from visitors as well as custom orders.

assistants. The ETP operates during the
school months, and continues to network
with the Outdoor Education Program,

O.K. School Elementary classes, Family &
Community Wellness Centre’s Daycare and
Head start Programs.

The ETP elders and employees work closely
with the teachers, Directors and students,
teaching various cultural activities such as
dressing fish, skinning pelts, setting traps,
snares, making snow shoes, sewing and
making mukluks, slippers, gauntlets, etc.

Approximately 60 students participated in
the program. There were three scheduled
classes on a weekly basis.
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NCN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT BOARD (rMB)

From the Nisichawayasihk Trust funds
available for distribution in 2013, $50,000
was allocated the NCN Resource
Management Board to achieve the RMB’s
objectives as set out in its 2013 operational
plan. Under the supervision of the Natural
Resource Secretariat and

Council Portfolio holder the board
manages the program.

As part of the 1996 NFA Implementation
Agreement, the RMB maintains its

arrangements for joint resource management

between Nelson House and the Province
of Manitoba. The RMB welcomes two new

Nelson House Resource
Management Area '
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members, Lou Moodie and Ed Vystercil.

The RMB continues to review all resource
allocations, land-use applications, and license/
permit applications made within the Resource
Management Area.

A Nelson House Resource Management
Board Newsletter was prepared by Manitoba
Hydro to share with the community on the
RMB’s achievements and accomplishments; it
also includes RMB’s plans, guiding principles,
board functions and future plans. The RMB
Newsletter is available for distribution and
will be uploaded on to the NCN Trust Office
website at www.trustoffice.ca.




FISHERMAN ASSOCIATION

From the Taskinigahp Trust funds available
for distribution in 2013, $125,000 was
allocated to the Nelson House Fisherman
Association (NHFA) carry out its objectives
as outlined in their 2013 operational plan.

The NHFA is governed by a six-member
board and employs a part-time manager,

a seasonal grader, packer runner and

20 licensed fisherman. The program
management and administrations remain the
same held at the Trust Office as in previous
years. Management payroll, subsidy costs,
equipment inventory and distributions,

and fisherman mobility (trucks, gas and
operation) also remain the same.

The NHFA board, management, Council
Portfolio Holders and fishers meet regularly
to discuss ways to improve the program
and to reach its objective in increasing
production. Representatives from Manitoba
Department of Conservation continue

to meet with the board to discuss their
findings during regular patrol after the
fishing seasons.

The NHFA provides fishers with logistical
assistance each season using the program
trucks to transport boats, equipment, fishers
and their helpers to their field locations. In
the beginning of the fishing season, fishers
are given operating expenses (startup), and
they also cover the costs of the runner, who
delivers the supplies and picks up fish for
the packing plant. These costs are expensed
to the NHFA and deducted from the fishers’
subsidy payments.

Generally, these deductions are settled at
the end of fishing season. The fishermen
startup costs totaled $18,661.33 and received
$17,396.26 in subsidy payments.
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Fishermen who show production by
delivering fish to Freshwater Fish Marketing
Corporation (FFMC) in Winnipeg are tracked
and recorded in FFMC’s system. Total
production is then attained by Community
Economic Development Fund (CEDF) to

use as an assessment tool to determine if a
fisherman is eligible for a fisherman’s loan to
purchase equipment. If a fisherman qualifies
for a loan from CEDF, the NHFA assist the
fisherman by providing 20 percent deposit to
CEDF for the financial equipment loan.

Fisherman earning a minimum of $8,400 in
production may be eligible for employment
insurance from Service Canada. This year two
fisherman qualified for employment insurance.
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TRAPPERS ASSOCIATION

From the Taskinigahp Trust funds available
for distribution in 2013, $125,000 was
allocated to the Nelson House Trappers
Association (NHFA) to carry out its
objectives as outlined in their 2013
operational plan.

The NHTA is governed by a four-member
Fur Council and employs a part-time
manager. The program management and
administrations remain the same held

at the Trust Office as in previous years.
Management payroll, subsidy costs,
equipment inventory and distributions,
and trapper’s mobility (trucks, gas and
operation) also remain the same.

The NHTA Fur Council, meets regularly and
also participates in annual events such as:

m Provincial General Meeting and Convention
in Ashern, Manitoba

m Fur Table display and information booth in
Thompson, Manitoba

m Fur Table auction in Thompson,
Manitoba management.

The Program runs throughout the year
with the active trapping season in
from early October until late May. The
start-up program continues to be a
success for trappers and youth during
the initial, primary and spring seasons.
The program supports trappers by
providing startup funds and vouchers
for equipment such as traps, snares,
knives and all other necessary
equipment the program maintains.
One of the main barriers to the
startup program is some trappers take
advantage of the program by receiving
start up and not going out to trap.

The Program offers a snowmobile purchase
program, which requires the trapper to
provide 50 percent of the total cost with
the program loaning the remaining

50 percent, which is payable through

cash or subsidy deductions.

The program also operates the Cabin
Material Program, available to registered
trap line holders only. Qualified trappers
may receive a forgivable purchase order up
to $3,000 for building materials that can be
used to renovate a cabin’s floor or roof.

The Program also conducts an annual
Mandatory Trapping Course which is
available to both youth and adults. This year
twenty new trapping certificates were issued.

In 2013, the NHTA issued $19,483.07 in
startup costs and provided a subsidy to
trappers in the amount of $18,936.53.




ELDERS SUBSIDY
OFF RESERVE PROGRAM

In addition to the surplus,
$100,000 was allocated to
provide Nisichawayasihk Cree
Nation elders living off
reserve with a monthly
subsidy of $100 to
supplement their
pensions and other
benefits. A total

of 16 elders were
subsidized

in 2013.

The NCN

Off Reserve

Elders Subsidy
Program eligibility
requirements to
receive the monthly
honoraria are

as follows:

m Must be a band member of Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation
m Must be 65 years or older

m Must have lived on Nelson House Reserve prior to Northern
Flood Agreement

m Must have lived on Nelson House Reserve prior to residential
school years

m Must have direct connection with NCN (i.e. come to reserve)

m Currently an NCN elder living in a personal care home.
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Nisichawayasihk Trust
Financial Statements
December 31, 2013
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Management's Responsibility

Tor the Members of Misichawayasihk Cree Mation

The acgompanying financial slalemenls of Nisichawasink Trusl are the respongibility of management and have been approved by tha
Truslees,

Management is responsible fr lhe preparation 2nd presentalion of ihe accompanying fingncial statemenls, ncluding responsibilily for
significant accounting judgments and estimates in accordance with Canagian public sactor accounting standards, This responsibility
ingludes selecting appropriale accounting principles and methads, and making decisions afecting the measvremenl of ransactions in
which objective judgment is reguired,

In discharging ils responsibiltias Tor tha inlegrity and fairness of the financial staterments, management designs and mainlaing fhe
necessary atcounting systems and related intemal controls 1o provide reasonabde gssurance that rangacions are aulhorized, assets
are saleguarded and financial regords are properdy matntzined to provide reliable information for the prepacation of inancial stalements.

The Truztess are responsible for overseging management in e pedormance of its tnancial reporing responsibilities, and lor gpproving
the financial statements. The Trustaes fulfil lese rasponsibililies by reviewing the financial informalon prepared by managemenl 2nd
discussng relevant mallers with managament and external auditors, The Cheel and Coungil of Misichawayasthk Creg Mation are
raspansible for the appointaeant of the Trest's exlemal avditers.

MMP LLP is appointed by the Chief and Council of Misichawayasihk Cree Nation 1o audit the financial statements and fepart directly o

them: thair reporl follows. The external auditors have full and free access to, and meet penodically and sepadately wilh, the Chief and
Council, the Trustees and management o discuss their audit fndings.

December 5, 2014

] o [ &
ﬂ#‘ Divector of f'j-‘flﬁﬁuﬁl—‘_ Comptroller

L/’ / Operations v
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Mistchawayasikk, Croe Malion:

We have gudited the accompanying financial slalements of Misichawasitk Trusl, which comprise the slatement of financial position 25 af
December 31, 2013 and the statemenls of changes in accurtulaled surplog and net financial agsals, oparations, remaasuraiment gaing
{lozses) and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting paliclas and alher explanatory information.

Maragemanl’'s Rasponsifilily for ihe Financigl Stafements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentalion of these financial statements in aocordance with Canadian public
sactor accounting standards, and for such inlernal conlred as managemenl determines is nacessany to enabla the praparation of
financial statements that are frea from material misstatemeant, whather due 12 fravd ar efrar.

Auditars’ Respongibilify

Our responsibilily is o axpress an apinion an lhese financial stalernents based on our audd, We conducted our audil in accordance wilh
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Thosa slandards require that we comply with ethical requirements angd ptan and
perfarm the avdil 13 oblain reasonablie assurance aboul whether the financial stalemenls are free from material missiatement.

£ gudil ineoives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the fnancial stalements. The
proceduras selectsd depend on the auditors’ judanmtent, including e assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the finangal
statements, whelther due to fravd or error. In making those dsk assessments, the auditor considers intemnal ontrol relevant 1o the
enlily's preparation and fair presentation of the inancial stalements in order to design audil procedures that are appropriale in the
circumsiances, but nat for the pulpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the enlily's inlernal control. An aygil also
includes evaluating the appropriatensss of aceaunling policias vsed and the reasonableness of accounting eslimates made by
rmanagement, as well 85 evalvaling the overall presentation of the fnancial staternents.

We believe thal the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our audil apinien,
Opinien
In gur gpinien, the financial statements present faidy, in all matenal respects, the financial pasition of Nisichawasikk Trust 2 al

Crecember 31, 2013 and the resulls of its operations. rereasuremeant gains (loszes), changes in accumufaled sumlus and nel financial
aszels and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sestor accounting stangargs.

Winnigeg, Manitoba M A/ P LLp

December 5, 2014 Chartared Accounlanis
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Nisichawasihk Trust

Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2013

2013 2m2

Financial assets
Cash
Accounts receivable
Poticlio invastments

2,486,783 1,113,520
13,168 13,545
44,454,67% 42251033

Liabilities
D@ to Misichawayasihk Trest Office (Wale 4)

43,944 630 4337814

1,278 144 3

Accumulated surplus and net financizl assets (Mote 5

42,666,518 43,373,104

Ap by Trustees

Trostee

Truatee

Trustes
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Nisichawasihk Trust

Statement of Changes in Accumulated Surplus and Net Financial Assets
Faor the year ended December 37, 2013

2015 2013 2012
Budget

Accumulaled sumplus iom aperalions, beginning of year
Acournulaled remeasurement gaing, beginning of year

43275571 43275571 44547 484

102,533 102,533 197 436

Accumulated surplus and net firancial agsets, beginning of year
Annual surplus {deficil) from operation:
Unrealized gains (losses) on invesiments

43,378,104 43,378,104 44 864927

- 670926  (1.271.093)
- {40,552) {14,505)

Accumulatad surplus and net financial assets, end of yaar

43,278,104  42,B66,516 43278104

Nisichawasihk Trust
Statement of Operations
For the year ended Oecember 37, 2013
203 203 2012
Budgat
Revarnua
Inlerest intomes 3,056,216 2,385,280 2453 578
Expenses
Transfer 1o Nisichawayaeihk Trust ORice A.656,216 3,056,296 3,730 489
Annual surplus {deficit) from operations - {670,938 {1.271.81%
Accumutated surglus from eparations, beglnning of year 43,275,511 43,275,571 44547 484
Accumylated surplue fram aperations, end of year 42,375 5T 42,604 835 43375871
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Nisichawasihk Trust

Statement of Remeasurament Gains {Losses)
For te year ended Decemibrer 31, 2013

2013 2012 2012

Budget
Agcumulated remeasurament gaing, beginning of year 102,531 102,533 117 438
Unrealized gaing (logses) on investments - {40,652} (14 908)
Arcumulated remeasurement gains, end of year 102,533 81,881 102,533

Nisichawasihk Trust

Statement of Cash Flows
For the vear ended December 31, 213

2013 2012
Cash provided by jused for) the fallowing activities
Cperating activitles
Cash from inderasl income 2,385,657 2 EB1.558
Cagh transferrad Io Misichawayasihk Trost Office (1, 778,102) (5,223 708}
607 555 (1,541,153}
Investing activities
Purchase of investments - {111.925)
Redemption of inveslmeants 765,708 2001313
765,708 1,589 388
Increase it cash 1,373 263 348,235
Cash, baglnning of year 4,113,520 765,285
Cash, end of year 2,486,783 1,113,520
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Nisichawasihk Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
For ifte yaar ended ODecamber 37 2013

Operations

Misichawashik Trusl (the "Trusl*t was crealed on March 15, 1998 pursuanl 1o an agreemenl hetween Her Majesty the
Gugen in Righl of Ganada, Her Majesty the Queen in Right of the Provinee of Mamiloba, Misichawayasihk Cree ialion [the
"Cree Matian"} and Maniloba Hydio-Electic Board lo settlo obligations under the Norhem Flood Sctitemenl Agreement.

Frocesds of Sefftement

In accordance wilth the tems of the Hofhem Flood Salflemant Agreement, the nancial obligations of the various parbies
hava been settled according 1o schedule 1.1 of the Agresment.

Sigmficant accounting palicies

These financial stalerments are the representaliens of managenent, prepared in acgordance with Canadian pyblic sector
accounting standards and including the followirg sigmfeant accounting policies:

Cash and cash aguivalents

Cash and cash aguivalents inglude balances with banks and shord-lerm invesiments with maturities of thres months or less.
Cash sobject to resirictions that prevent its usa for current purposes is included in restricled cash.

Basis of preseniation

Sources of revenus and expenses are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting. The acoruzl basis of accounling
recognizes revenue =s it becomes available and measorable; expenses are recognizad as thay are incumed and
measurable as a resull of the rgceipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obhgatlon o pay.

Ravenua recogrition
Interesl income is recognized on an accrual basis as eamad
Measuremant uncartaindy

The preparation of inancial slatements in conformily with Canadian pubdic sector aecouniing standands requires
managemenl to make eshimales and assumptions lhal affect the reported amounts of assels and habilities and disclosure of
conlingent assals and labilities al the dats of the financial statements, and the reported amounls of revenue and sxpenses
during the reporiing perigd.

Accaunts receivable are slated after evalualion as to their collectibility and an appropriste sllowance for doubtful accounts is
provided where considared necessary.

These estimales and assumplions are reviewed perodically and, as adjuslmenls become necessary lhey are reporled in
operations in ha period in which they become Krown,

TRUST OFFICE Annual Report 2013 67



Nisichawasihk Trust

Motes 1o the Financial Statements
For the year endad December 31, 21T

68

Significant acoounting policies [(Confinued fmm previous page)

Financial fnstrements

Arrorlized Cost

The Trest has classified the follgwing financial assels in the amortized cost category: cash and accounts recaivable, These
assals arg inilially recognized at thedr far value, Fair vales is appreximaled by the instroment's cost in a ransaction
between unrelaled padies. Transaclions to purchase or sl hase iterms are recorded on fhe trade date.

Cash ard aooounts receivable are subsegquently measured al their amorhized cost, vsing tha effective interest method.
Under this method, estimated future cash receipls are exacly discounted over the assers expected life, or othar apprapriate
period. e il ned carying valee. Amorizad cost is (he amount 3l which the ingnoal assat is measurad at imilial recognition
less principal payments, plus or minus the cumulatve amorization wsing the efective interest mathod of any difference
between that iniliz] amount and the maturidy amount, and less any reduction for impaimment or uncolleclability.

The Trsst has classified the following liability i the amorized cost calagory; dus to Misichawayasihk Trust OFice, This
liability is initrally recognized at its fair value, Fair value is approgimated by the instrument's Iniial cost Ina ransaction
bretweaen unrelated paries. Transaglions to purchase or sall Ihase itams ara recorded gn e frade data.

Due g Misichawayasihk Trust Office is subseguently measured al armorized cost using the effective inlerest method. Under
this mathod, astimated future cash payments are axacily discounted over the [izbility's expectad life, or other appropriate
period, toils nel camying value. Amodizad cost is tha amaunt al which the financial lability /s measured st initial recogmiion
less principal repaymenls, and plus of minus the cumulalive amortizalion using the effective interest method of any
difference batwesn lhat imtial amount and the ealdnily gmounl,

Fair Value

The Trust has classified the following financia! assel in the fair value calagory: potialio investments, These assels are
inilially recognized at their fair value. Fair vales is approximated by the insrumeant's st in 3 ransaction between unrelated
parlies, Transactions 1o purchase or sell these items are recorded on the trade date.

Portfalio investments are subsequently measured at their fair value. Podfolo investnents in aquiky insliortents (Gat de not
hrave quoted miarket prices in an active market are measured at cost. Gains and losses adsing ram changas in fair value,
except for impairmen! lesses and foreion exchange ranstalion adjustments, are recognized in the slatement of
remeasurenen gains (losses) as a remeasurarment gain or lass, unbil the Anancial asset is sold or othenwise derecogmzed.
Lpon derecogrition, the cumulative gain or 1o0ss previously recognized in the slatement of remeasurement gains {Iosses) is
Iransferred to the stalement of operationsa.



Nisichawasihk Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
Far the yoar ended Coecamber 31, 2017

Intarnal rastriciions

Az stipulated in the Trust Indenture the financial posilion and operalions of the Trusl have teen allocated into Funds with
restrictions on the uses of gach as follows:

The Funds Available for any year are the amounts approved Lhrough the Communily Approval Process and include
amaounts paid 1o Chief and Coungil for administenng the Trusl and te fund the vanous programs.

Funds available is defined as lhe grealer of;

iy the meome earned in the Trost Assets and

i} Ihe amount by which the Met Valve of the Assets as determited by the Cofporate Trustee 21 the clase of the priar fiscal
year, exciuding the Arena funds, Assets held in the Investment and Heritage Account, and the principal amounts in the
Crperations and Maintenance Sub-Account and the Recraational Facilittes and Programs Sub-Account, excesd forly miltion
(Z40,000,000) dollarg.

Al Funds Avaitable are to be allocated firstly out of incoime of the Trusl and then out of the balanca of Trust Cagpital

A, General Fund

Tha General Fund ingledes lransactions related to the Trusl Assets which are managed by the Trustees, which indudes the
Corporate Trustee - RBC Wealth Management, &nd four members of Misichawayasihk Cres Nalon, All Trust Assets are
resiricled and can only be accessed trough the Communily Approval Process, subject lo the restrictions noted above.

Unaftocated Funds Available arg paid to Chief and Council who can either deposit such funds in the [nvestment ang
Heritage Account or the Community Devatopmant Accounl. If the funds are deposited in the Community Developrment
Agcount, (hey are subject to the Community Approval Process and will be spent in tha subsequent fiscal year in addition o
Iha Funds Available for thal year.

B. Communily Development Fund
Tha Community Development Fund includes transacilans related to implementing the Agraemenl, adninislering the Trust,
and conducting the Commuily Approval Process.

Compensation of $1,000,000 was received in the past as part of the Mordhern Flood Agreament and was wsed as aloan
guarantee for the Morthern Flood Coramiltee. During the yaar snded Cecember 31, 2008, an addilional $435.632 of capital
and 5145 503 of interesl carned on Ihis amound was setited in this Fund.

Tha interest on the $1.495 632 of capital is 10 be Used to buitd and devalop recrealional facilitics and to provide recreational
pragrams to the Cree Nation and iz Members and can only be scoessed through the Community Approval Process. The
capital account of 31,485,532 in {he Recraatinnal Facilittes and Programs sub-account cannot be encroached vpon.

G Claimg Fumd

The menies in the Claims Fund can onfy be vsed lo campensale:

i} lthe Cree Mation

iy it's Members, and

ity any group, unincorporated association, or corporation whose mambership or shareholding is wholly or subslantizlly
comprised and conlrodled by the Cree Nation or its Membeis for damages or losses suffered resulting from or attnbuolabde to
the adverse effects of Ihe Projects of the Maniloba Hydro-Electric Board, Monias may also ba vsad for the reasonable
costs of the Arbitrator anging oul of such claims, the reasonable vosts o investinale such claims, and payment of costs
awarded {o 3 Claimant.

Al the begnning of each iscal year, an amount will be allocaled as a first prigrity fram Ihe Funds Available lo ansure that a
mifimum balance of $50,000 {the apgregale of funds both & Misichawayasibk Trust Ofice and at Nisichawasibk Trusly is
mainlained in e claims fund, Fundg in excess of $50.000 on the last business day of any fiscat year (nil 8t December 31,
20ri3) will be franferred tnto the Invesiment and Hertage Fund,

D Invesiment and Henlage Fung
The Invesimenl and Herilage Fund incfudes monies which have been approved by the Comeunily Approval Process for
busingss and invesimenl pUIpoSEs.

Al monies that were held in the Trost cash accountl of each fund at Decamber 31, 2013 eamed interes) al {.92%.
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Nisichawasihk Trust

Motas to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 20713

Cue to Nisichawayasihk Truat Office
ams3 2012

Due to Misichawayasihk Trusl ORice 1,278,114 -

Cwring the year, Misichawasink Trusl transferrad §3,066.216 (2012 - $ 3.730,489) to Misichawayasihk Trust Office 1o fund
programs in accordanca with the Gammunily Approval Process Amounls due to Nisichawayasink Trust Office are
unsacured and arg non-inlerast bearing with ne fixed terms of repaymenl.

Misichawasihk Trust is retaled lo Nisichawayasihk Trusl Office hrough cameman control by tha Chisf and Council of
Wisichawayasihk Cres Matian,

Acctmulated surglus and nat financial aaseta

2013 012
Accumulated surplus rom operalions 42 604 835 £3,275.5T
Accumulated remeasuremeant gaing 61,881 102,813

42 666 516 43,378,104

Fair value of financial ingtruments

Einancial ingiruments recarded al fair vatue in Mistchawasthk Trust consist of: partfolio mvestments,
Fair valua hierarchy:

Beginning January 1, 2011, assels and liabililies recorded at fair value on the statement of finzncial pesilion are measured and
classified in tha higrarchy consisting of three lavels for disclosurs purposes. The thiee levels are based on tha pricrity of the
inputs lo the respeclive valuation lechnique. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest pricrily to quoted prices in aclive markets.
for identical azsets or liabilides {Level 1) and the lowest priarity to unobservable inputs {Level 3. An assei or liabilily's
classikcation within the fair value hiararchy is based on the lowest tevel of significant input to its valuation. The input levels are
defined as follows

- Level 1; Unadjusted quoted prices in an aclive market for identleal aasels and liagilinies.

Assats of the Trust measured at falr value ang clagsified as Level 1 include partfolio investments, The cosl base of the portfolio
inwestments al December 37, 20113 was $41 382 798 (December 31, 2012 -542.148 S0E).

- Leval 2 Quoted prices in markeds thal are nol aclive or inputs that are observable either directiy (i.e., as pricas} or indirectly
fi.e., derbved from prices).

Level 2 inputs inclede qualed prices for assels in markets thal are considered less active. There are ng assets of the Trust
rmeagured al fair value classified as Leveal 2.

- Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by Gitffe or no markel aclivity and ara significant Ip the estimated (zir valuz of
Ihe assets or liahilities.

Lavel 3 assels and Fabilities would include financial instruments whose values arg determined using pricing rmodels, disesuntad
melhodologies, or similar techniques. as well as instroments for which the determination of estimated fair walue requires
sigrificant management judgment or estimalion, There ace no assets of the Trusl measured at fair value classified as Level 3.



Nisichawasihk Trust

MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the yvaar anded Decamber 31, 2073

Mature and extent of risk arising from financlal instruments

Market Risk:

Market risk anses from changes in interest rales thal affect Misichawasibk Trusts inlergst income, Exposure to this risk
direcliy impacts Nisichawasitk Trusl's income from its porifolio investments. Nigsichawasihk Trusl's ohjeclive is to eam an
acceptable net return on these portfolio invesimenls, without 1aking unreasenable risk, while meating beneficianes’ neads.

Risk messurentent;

Misichawasihk Trust's risk position is measured and monitored sach month o ensure compliance with policles as noted in
ke Treal Indenlure, Management provides monthly repods on these matlers lo e Trustees of Nischawasihk Trust

Chjectives, policies and processes:

The Corporale Trustee is responsible for maraging Nisichawasthk Trusl's inleresl rate risk, monitoring porifalip invesiments
and compliance with poticies. Misichawasitk Trust manages market risk by developing and implermenting assel and liability
rmanagement policies, which are approved and perigdically reviewed by the Chief and Council of Nisichawayasihk Cree
Mation and the Corporate Trustee.
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Nisichawasihk Trust

Schedule 3 - Statement of Portfolio Investments
As af Decambar 31, 2013

(Unaudited)
2043 2002
Fartal Fund

Maniloba Hydro - Etectric Board Seiigs 5A Promissory Mota, dus 12755152014, 5.750% 40,000,006 440,008,361

Commun iy Davelopmend Fund
Bank of Mova Scotia Senior Deposit Notes, due OFME&2014, 3.43% 02,244 205412
Canedian teperial Bank of Comrmerce Seaior Deposit Notes, due 030202015, 3.10% 161,828 0z 549
GE Capilal Canada Funding, due S52015_ 4,24% 103,654 105,560
Bank af Monireal Fixed Rate Depsoit Mates, dus GBH02/2015, 2 96% 112,34 115,221
Province of Ontaria, 4 75% . 101,493
Prowirce of Ontaric Motes, dus 09082014, 3.25% 101,460 238
Pravince of Cnlaria, due O3/08/HM 5. 4 50% 119,537 122.71%
Pravince of Oataria Debentare, due 0308/ 2018, 4.20% 216,244 221,780
City of Toronto Serial Debenture, due 10252014, 4. 80% 102,981 105,997
Province of Wew Brunswick Sinking Fund Oabentures. due 060202020, ¢ 50% 164,642 170,972
Frovinge of CGuetee, due 128012018, 4.50% 249,914 228,712
1448 8T 1,578,926

Inyesiment and Herltaps Fund
Manitobs Hydro - Electric Board Series 58, 5.750% = B55.812
41,444 679 a7 2681 099

74

Tite cost of the portfedio investiments gt December 31, 2013 was §41,382 798 (Decemnber 31, 2012 - 42,148 506).
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MNotice To Reader

Oin the basis of infermation provided by management, we have compiled the statement of finzmcial posiian by fend of Nisichawayasink
Trusl Office as at December 31, 2013 and Lhe statements of operations and accumulated surplus by fund, changa in nel financial assels
and cash Mows for the year then ended, We have not performed an audil or a review engagemenl in respact of these financial
statements and, aoeordingly, we express no assurance thergon. Readers are cautioned that these statements may not be apprepiiate

far ther purposes

Winnipeg, Manitoba

May 1, 2015 Chartered Accountants
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office

Statement of Financial Position by Fund
Az At December 31, 20713
(Unaudited - sec Notice 1o Reader

Community Investment
Development Claims and Heritage
Fund Fund Fund 2013 )
Financial assets
Cash 1,648 BE0 11,914 - 1,661,574 2,284 BEB
Accounts and advances receivable 14,570 - - 14,570 16,752
Short-lerm investmenls (Note 2] 100 455 - - 100,455 100,205
Due batween funds 26,268 {2B,268) - - -
Due from related entities (Aofa 3) 1,708,072 17,000 - 1,726,072 50,433
3,500,025 2 6dB - 3,502 671 2462 263
Liabilities
Accounls payabre agnd accrued liabililies 219,053 - - 219,053 163,045
Due to related enfilies {Wole 8 1,864,448 - - 1,864,448 1,476,082
2,083,501 - - 2,083,501 1839127
Mat financial assats 1,416,524 2,646 . 1,419,170 323136
Non-financial assets
Tangible capilal assets [(Scheduie 1) 118,911 - - 118,911 119234
Accumulated surplus (Mote 6} 1,535 435 2,546 - 1,538,081 942 374
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus by Fund
For the year anded Decambar 37, 2013
{Unguaited - see Notice to Reader]

Community Investment
2013 Development Claims  and Haritage 2013 2012
Schedule Budgot Fund Fund Fund
Revanue
Misichawasibk Trusi funding {hfole 33 3,056,216 2006, 2495 50,004 - 3.056,216  3.730.48%
Transfers from Taskinigahs Trust Offiza {Molo 3 GO0, 670 G} 57D - EO90 670 234 850
Oihet revenue - FERR-Fy - - 271924 74,633
Lpan recaveries - 44 356 - - 44 0954 44 5940
Interesl incarme - 19,901 321 - 20,222 20212
Equipmant testwarias - 14,4832 - - 14,482 1,511
3,746,836 4,048,146 50,329 - £098 487 4136255
Expensos
Implementation Agreement 2 648,229 435,801 - - 416,801 843 a0
Capital Pro,ectz 3 30,008 4,950 - - 1,950 24,000
Ecomormie Developmend 4 TOT, 500 61,750 . - 661,750 1178511
Educabon 5 140,000 140,000 . - 140,000 aTh.oo0
Housing 33 200,000 200,000 . . 200,000 -
Jussice 7 420,331 420,331 - - 420,331 480,000
Puklic Works & 52,000 74175 - - F4,175 -
Fesource and Lard Use g GEO.GET0 6Y5,805 - - 75,805 BoG.229
Saal Davelsoreent 1d 652,209 532,693 - - BB2,693 436,099
Other Pragrams 11 175,847 166,199 - - 165,199 158.013
Claims Program 12 26,000 - 43,056 - 43,056 45,581
3,746,586 3,459,704 43,056 3,502,760 4,457 056
Annual surplus {deficit} - 588,442 7255 £55,707 [320.831)
Accumulzted surpies (deficit), beginning of year 42,374 046,953 4,618) - 942,274 1,253.20%
Accumulzted surplus, end of year 942,374 1,535 435 2,646 . 1,538 081 942 374
TRUST OFFICE Annual Report 2013
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office

Statement of Change in Net Financial Assets
For the year ended December 51, 20713
{Unaudited - see Nolive fn Reader)

203 20713 2012
Budge!

Artnual surplus [deficit) - h85, 70T (320 B31)
Acquisilion of tangible capital assels - (28,424} (41,9923
Amorlization of langble capital aszsets - 28,781 25428

Increase (decraase) in net finzncial assets - 596,034 (337,390

Met inzncial assets, beglnning of year 823,136 823136 1,180,531

Net financial assets, end of year 823,136 1,419,170 823156

Nisichawayasihk Trust Office

Statement of Cash Flows
For fhe yaar endad Dagembar 31, 2013
{Unaudited - zee Molice fo Reader}

2093 M2
Cash provided by (used for] the following activities
Cperating activities
Cash provided by Misichawayasibk Trusl 1,778,103 5,222,708
Cash provided by Taskinigahp Trust Sffice a02.287 257410
Cash provided by other sources 334,423 150,911
|Mterest income 20,222 2212
Cash used for program expenges {3,229,625} {4,188 481}
{584,610} 1485761
Investing activities
Cash used for shart-larm inve stmems {250} (3943
Capital activities
Acouisition of tangible capital assels (28,434} {21,092
increase (decrease} in cash resources {623,294} 1.443 375
Cash resources, beginning of year 2,284,865 841,453
Cash rezources, and of year 1,661,574 2,284,868
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office

MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013
[Unawditad - seq Nofice to Reader]

Cperations

The Misichawayazihk Trust Office (the "Trusl Ofice”™) was established in May 19948 to administer the Prograrm Funding
received from Lhe Misichawasihk Trust on behalf of the Chief and Council of Migichawayasihk Cree Nalion.

These financial slalemenls presant ihe assels, liabifities, revenue, axpenditures and surpluses of the various programs

insofar as they relate to the Misichawayasihk Trust Office funding. As a resull, lhese stalements do not include all of the
revenue and expenditures of the various programs.

Short-term investmants

The shof-lerm invesimenls conzist of two redeernable guaranteed investment cettificates Both issued by Royal Bank of
{-anada.

613 2012
3.1.0., repewed on October 7, 2013 and matuning January S, 2014, be aring interest of
0.55% per annurm. 45 784 45 534
3.2, renewed on Oclober 24, 2013 and maluring Sclober 28, 2014, hearing interest at
1.05% per annurm, 54,671 54,671
100,455 100,205
Due fram ralated entities
213 2072
Misichawaszink Troust 1278113 -
Misichawayasihk Perscnal Care Home Iné. 216,800 16,000
Taskinigahp Trusl CHice 231,858 44 438
1,726,072 60,435

During the year, the Nisichawasink Trust ransferred $3.056 216 (2002 - £3,730,489) to lhe Misichawayasihk Trest Office ko
fund programs in accerdance with the Commurity Approval Process.

During the year, he Taskinigahp Trust Ofice ransferred $590, 670 (2012 - 5234, 850) to the Nisichawayasihk Trusl Office {o
fund programes in accordance with the Community Involvement Process.
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ahded Decamber 31, 2013
(Linauditad - se¢ Nolice o Reader)

Internal restrictions

Ag stipulated inthe Trust Indenture, the financial position and operations of the Misichawayasink Trust Office have been
allocated into Funds with restrictions on the uses of each fund as follows:

The Funds Available [progeam funding) for any year are the amounls approved ihrough the Communily Approval Process
for adrministenng the Nisichawayasink Trust Gfice and funding lhe various programs, not to exceed the approved budget for
thal year ($3.006.218 for the year ended Decernber 31, 2013}, The funding of the Claims Fund has a firsl prarity over other
programs (funded $50,000 for the yaar ended December 31, 2013).

Community Development Fuod
The Sommunity Development Fund includes ransaclions relaled to implementing the Agreemenl, administening the
Misichawayasibk Trust Office and varioes programs and conducting the Community Approval Process,

Compensation of $1,000,000 was received in the past as pait of the Northern Flood Agreemenl and was used as a loan
guarantee for the Northern Flood Commilles, During the vear ended December 31, 2008, an additional 3495 ,632 of capital
and $145,507 of inlerest eaned on this amount was setiled in the Communily Development Fund of the Mizichawasitk
Trust. &1l of Ihese amounts have been depositad in the Recreational Facilities and Programs sub-acoount of the
Mizichawasihk Trost,

The interest earmed on the $1,495.632 of capital ig to be used Lo build and develop recreational faciilies and o provide
recreational pragrams to Misichawayasink Gree Nation and its Members and can only be accessed through the Comirmunity
Approvel Procese. This capital amounl of 51,485,632 in the Recreatienal Facilities and Frograms sub-account of
Nisichawasihk Trusl canngt be encroached vpon,

Nisichawayasibk Trust Office has deposited monies in trust at the Peguis First Nations branch of the Royal Bank of Canada
to guarantee ‘pans laken by Home Cwnership Frogram applicants.

investment and Herflage Fund
The Imvestrment and Herilage Fund ingludes funds which have been approved by the Communiby Approval Process and can
only be used for businass and investment purposes.

Claims Fumd

The Claims Fund includes Iransachions relaled to zettling compensation claims of:

i) Misichawayasink Crae Mation,

iiy its Members. and

iy any group, unincorporated associakon or corperalion whose membrershig or shareholding is wholly or substantially
comprised and controlled by Misichawayasibk Cree Naton or its Members, for damages and lozzes suffered resulting from,
or attribuizble to Ihe adverse effects of the Projects of the Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board. Monies may alao be used for the
reasonable costs of the Arbilrator arising cut of such claims. the reasenable costs 1o investigale such elaimg and payrment
ol coztz awarded to a Claimant.

Althe beginning of each fiscal year, an amount will be allecatad as a first priority from the Funds Available to ansure that a
minicnum bakarce of $50,000 ithe agoragate of funds both &t the Misichawasink Trust and the Nisichawayasibk Trust Office)
is mainlained in the Claims Fund. Throughaout the year il should be &t a masimum balance of $50,000. Funds in excess of
$50.000 on he lasl business day of any fiscal year will be transferred to the Investment and Herilage Fund.

Funds at the specified dales below consisted of the following:

2013 2012

Misichawasink Trust 7,935 1,816
Higichawayasibik Trugl Office 2 646 (4618
4,581 {2,703




Nisichawayasihk Trust Office

Notes to the Financial Statements
Forthe pear ended December 31, 2073
{Unaudied - see Molice fo Reader)

Due to related antities

2012 2012
Atoskmvin Training and Employment Centré - 83,750
Gilbert McDonald Arena 15,700 18425
MCM Minor Hockey Committee 6,040 8,040
Welzon House Development {orparalion - 88,000
Helson House Education Aulhornily N, 180,200 40,200
Welzon House Medicine Lodge Inc. 25,000 25,000
Misichawayasihk Cree Mation 1,149,170 1,00%,62%
Misichawayasihk Cree Mation Housing Autharity 37E,000 178,000
Hisichawayazink Cree Mation Human Resource Development Authaorily 98,338 7,638
Yuskwatim Implementation Office 8 500 &8,500
1,864,448 1,476,082

During the year, the Misichawayasink Trust Office transfermed 51,199,631 (2012 - 2,142,700} fo relaled enlities to fund

programs in accordance will the Cemmunity Approval Process.

Accumulated surplus

Accumulated surplus is comprised of 1he following:

2013 2012
Accumulated surplus from oparations 1419170 823138
Equity in tangible capital asse1s 118,911 1193 238
1,528,081 B 3T
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013
{Unaudited - seq Nofice to Reader)

Expanses by object

&M 3 2072

Transfers to related entities 1.199.631 2142 F00
Salanes, wages and benefits 698, 268 593,548
Recreational programming and evends 224,478 1a§ 316
Putchases of non-capital goods, supplies and services 224,133 225850
Subsidies and start-up loans to community members 200,624 253,247
Travel 545,307 158 4045
Hanararia 134 125 154,782
Repairs and maintenance 130,534 160,826
Miscellaneous 110,564 83,353
Utilities, lalgphene and intemet 82 400 78,591
Investment care and management feas hg 487 89527
Adverlising, pramofion, donahons and memberships 54,554 4,954
Prolessional, consulting, and support fees AGETS FR B2
Chrislmas hampers and gifls 40,052 35,290
Casual labour 38,677 21,128
Compensation for claims 29,2268 34 966
Amorization 25,764 25 428
Megtings, raimng and education 27.581 16,375
Insuranse 15,715 & 500
Interest and bank charges 7,948 5,077
3,502,760 4. 457 086
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office
implementation Agreement

Schedule 2 - Statement of Revenue and Expenses

For the vear ended December 37, 2013
{Linaischited - sea Mofice fo Roader)

2013 203 2012
Burdiget
Revenue
Hizichawasibk Trusl funding 618,229 48,229 685,538
Transfer from Taskimgahp Trusl Dffice 30,000 30,000 25000
Irlerest incamnta - 17,383 i8.728
Other revenue - - 11,229
644,229 BE5 612 744 808
Expenses
AdmimstrationTrust amatgamation 376,807 400, 285 454 126
Arena O&M 55,000 55,000 55.000
Communily approval process ET.500 69 2581 45,494
Corporate trustes lees 70,000 g4 987 51,027
Mz|zen House truslees 28,922 17,844 20,840
Ferzonal Care Home - (200000 200,00
Profeszionzl services 50,000 34,407 44 156
548,223 436,801 B33 645
Annuzl surplus [defigit) before transfers betwaen programs - 228,811 (148 837y
Transzfers between programs
Tranmsfer from Economic Develupment - 99,000 -
Annyal surplus (deficit) - 327811 (145,337)
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office
Capital Projects
Schedule 3 - Statement of Revenue and Expenses

For the year erded Cecember 37, 2013
[Ungirdited - ses Motice o Reader)

2013 23 2002
Budgel
Rovenue
Mizichawasihk Trusl funding 10,000 10,000 24,000
Expenses
Baseball dizamond - - 24,000
Uniled Church renovations 10,000 1,958 -
10,000 1,950 24,000
Annual surplus {deficit) - 8,050 -
Nisichawayasihk Trust Office
Economic Development
Schedule 4 - Statement of Revenue and Expenses
For the year ended December 37, 2073
{Unaudited - zee Matice to Readear)
2073 23 2072
Budget
Revenue
Misichawasink Trust lunding 07,500 07,500 1.161.500
CHher revenue - 41,902 188596
Transfer from Taskinigahp Trust Office - - 5,000
FO7,500 749,402 1,185,306
Expenses
Human rescuice officer - 6,800 156,700
Hurnan rescurce specialist 22 500 22,500 -
MCH Achirmowin radio station 115,000 149, 450 111,811
Off-resenve aszistance 20,000 20,000 40,000
Summer student employment &0,000 2,000 12,000
Wushkwetion 2oLty 500,000 &00,000 1.000.000
Otohowin Gas Bar slaton 1] - {99.008) -
TUT.500 E61.750 1,174.511
Annual surplus {deficit} bafore transfers hetween programs - 87,652 5 REL
Transfers hetween programs
Transler 1& nplemenlalion Agreament - (95,0009 -
Annual surplus [deficit) - 111.348} 5885
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office
Education

Schedule 5 - Statement of Revenue and Expenses
For the year ended Decermber 31, 2013
{Unaudited - zee Nolice fo Reaoer)

273 2013 2072
Budgar
Rewenue
Migichawasihk Trust funding 140,000 140,000 370,000
Expenses
ATED aperalions and mainlenance - - 250,000
Mutrition 30,000 3,000 20,000}
Post-sesondary funding 60,000 60,000 50,000
Special education 50,000 50,000 S0 (HI0}
140,000 140,000 ATOC00

Annual surplus {deficit)

Nisichawayasihk Trust Office
Housing

Schedule & - Statement of Revenue and Expenses
Far the year ended December 31, 2013
{linaudiled - soo Notice fo Reader}

M3 20713 2M2
EBudger

Revenueg

Mizichawasibk Trust funding 200,000 200,000 -

Intarest income - 231 373

200,000 200,24 73

Expenses

Housing eduity Tund 200,000 200 000 -
Annual surplus {deficit) - 23 373
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office
Justice

Schedule 7 - Statement of Revenue and Expenses
For the year ended December 31, 2013
fLinadiclited - see Mnfice to Readear)

2073 iy K 2017
Hudget

Fevenueg

Misichawasihk Truel funding 420,231 520,33 450 000
Expenses

Emergency service 355,431 355,431 -

WO justics &4,900 64,908 450000

420,331 420,331 450 000

Annual surplus [deficit)

Nisichawayasihk Trust Office
Public Works

Schedule 8 - Statement of Revenue and Expenses
For the vear ended December 31, 2013
[Unaudited - zee Matice to Feader)

2013 2013 efig
Guoige:
Revenue
Misichawasibk Trusl funding B2,000 82,000 5 (I
Expanses
Communily ¢laan up 10,000 10,000 -
Grave yard maintenance 10,000 10,000 -
MNew roof and siding of 20 Patrick Charch 10,000 2,175 .
Steel garbage bins 24,000 24,000 -
Traclor equipment 28,000 28,000 -
82,000 74175 -
Anpual surplus (deficit} - 7825 5,000
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office
Resource and Land Use

Schedule 9 - Statement of Revenue and Expenses
Far the year ended December 317, 20413
{Urnaudited - 5ee Nalice fo Reader)

2013 2013 2012
Budget
Revenue
Trangfer leom Taskinigahp Trust Ofice 680,670 BA0EFD 204 850
Other revenua - 53,220 27,284
Logn recoveries - 44 456 44 581
Equipment salas - 14,482 31,511
Mizichawasihk Trust funding - - 434150
460,670 783,328 742 355
Expenses
Country foods 200,000 185,035 225 766
Fisherman Association 125,000 182,77 236418
Jack, Moore elders tradittonal 160,670 172,920 180,618
MCM resounce managen ent 50,000 &1.476 o8, G40
Trappers 125,000 103,603 174 788
E60 BTD 675,805 E06, 2258
Annual surplus (deficit) - 107,523 {153,844




Nisichawayasihk Trust Office
Social Development

Schedule 10 - Statement of Revenue and Expenses
For the pear ended December 37, 2113
{Unandited - see Motice o Reader!

2013 23 2012
Burdger
Revenue
Misichawasihk Trust funding B52,308 G52, 309 421,000
Qlher revenus - 166,247 9,504
Imlerest income - 2,287 750
652,300 520,843 431,644
Exprnses
Baseball field upgrade - 08 -
FOWE elders 30,000 30,800 -
MCH Mingr Hockey Associalion - it 2 5]
Marth Armerican ndigenous Sames - 875 .
Parks and recreation 480 000 459,626 315,967
Premoting wellness and comemunity Spiri 72,308 ¥2,309 -
Rediscovery of {families project 60,000 &0,000 40,004
Youth resource centre - 51,794 TTF 632
E52,30% 682,653 435,049
Annual surplus fdeficit) - 138,150 {4,455)
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office
Cther Programs

Schedule 11 - Statement of Revenue and Expenses
For the year ended Deoember 31, 2015
{Unaudited - zee Nolice fo Reader)

2013 2013 HH2
Bugged
Revenue
Misichawasihk Trust iunding 175,847 175,847 140,000
Qther revenue - &82 7.300
175,547 176,399 147 300
Exponses
Christmas cheerboard 40,000 40,062 35813
Elders subsidy {ofl reserve) 2,047 2047 -
Elders subsidy {on resenve} 133,800 124,100 122,400
175,247 186,189 158,013
Annual surplus {deficit) - 10,200 {10,713
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Nisichawayasihk Trust Office
Claims Program

Schedule 12 - Statement of Revenue and Expenses
Far the year ended Degertber 37, 2013
(Unaudited - zae Nolice fo Rreader)

2013 2013 2072
Budgel
Revenua
Migichawasink Trust funding 50,000 50,000 35,000
|Merest ncome - 374 %59
50,000 S0,321 35,351
Expenses
Cpllaims SE,000 43 035 4% 991
Annual surplus (dafici) - 7,265 (14.2400
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Taskinigahp Trust
Financial Statements
December 31, 2013
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Management's Responsibility

Tao the Members of Misichawayasihk Cree Nation

The accompanying financial statements of Taskinigahp Trust are the responsibility of management and have been approved by the
Trustees.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the accompanying financial statements, including responsibility
for significant accounting judgments and estimates in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. This responsibility
includes selecting appropriate accounting principles and metheds, and making decisions affecting the measuremeant of fransactions in

which objective judgment is required.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and faimess of the financial siatements, management designs and maintains the
necessary accounting systems and related interal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets
are safeguarded and financial records are properly maintained to provide reliable information for the preparation of financial statements.

The Trustees are responsible for overseeing management in the performance of its financial reporting responsibilities, and for approving
the financial statements. The Trustees fulfil these responsibiliies by reviewing the financial information prepared by management and
discussing relevant matters with management and extemal auditors. The Chief and Council of Misichawayasihk Cree Nation are

responsible for the appointment of the Trust's external auditors.

MMF LLP is appointed by the Chief and Council of Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation to audit the financial statemants and report directly to
them; their report follows. The external auditors have full and free access to, and meet pericdically and separately with, the Chief and
Council, the Truslees and management to discuss their audit findings.

December 5. 2014

G — }IC/ATP\H@{} AL S Comptroller

U ./ Operations
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Taskinigahp Trust, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2013 and the statements of changes in accumulated surplus and net financial assets, operations, remeasurement gains
(losses) and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary lo enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial slalements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant lo the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Cpinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position of Taskinigahp Trust as at December
31, 2013 and the results of its operations, remeasurement gains (losses), changes in accumulated surplus and net financial assets and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Winnipeg, Manitoba M A/ P LLP

December 5, 2014 Chartered Accountants
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Taskinigahp Trust

Statement of Financial Position
As af December 31, 2013

2013 2012
(Restated)
Financial assets
Cash 55,102 892,135
Accounts receivable (Note 4) 476,128 521,671
Portfolio invesiments 4,417,934 3,497,379
4,949,164 4111185
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,970 7,949
Due to Taskinigahp Trust Office  (Nole 5) 537,677 83,811
546,647 1,760
Accumulated surplus and net financial assets [Nofe 6) 4,402.517 4,018,425
WD
Y Trustee
————
Trustee Trustee
Trustee

f/f/h—' Trustee

[
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Taskinigahp Trust

Statement of Changes in Accumulated Surplus and Net Financial Assets
For the year ended December 31, 2013

2013 2013 2012
Eud'gg (Restated)
Accumulated surplus from operations, beginning of year, as previously stated 3,352,117 3,352,117 5,894 018
Prior period adjustment (Note 9) . 501,227 _
Accumulated surplus from operations, beginning of year, as restated 3,352,117 3,853,344 5,864,018
Accumulated remeasurement gains, beginning of year 166,081 166,081 286,792
Accumulated surplus and net financlal assets, beginning of year 3,518,198 4,019,425 6,180,810
Annual surplus (deficit) from operations (378,142) 444 543 (2,040,674)
Unrealized gains (losses) on investmentis - (61,451) (120,711)
Accumulated surplus and net financial assets, end of year 3,140,056 4,402,517 4,019,425
101
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Taskinigahp Trust

Statement of Operations
Far the year ended December 31, 2013

2013 2013 2012
Budget (Restated)
Revenue
Interast income 118,300 120,766 182,047
Reszlized gains - 8,593 49,762
Transmission benefits 310,000 310,019 389,283
VWater power rental income - 1,641,054 501,227
428,300 2,080,432 1,122 326
Expenses
Transfer to Taskinigahp Trust Office 606,442 1,635,889 3E3,000
Transfer io Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation - - 2,800,000
806,442 1,635,889 3,163,000
Annual surplus (deficit) from operations (378,142) 444,543 (2,040674)
Accumulated surplus from operations, beginning of year, as previously stated 3,352,117 3,352,117 5894018
Prior period adjustment (Vote 9) - 501,227 -
Accumulated surplus from operations, beginning of year, as reslated 3,352,117 3,853,344 5.884.018
Accumulated surplus from operations, end of year 2,973,976 4,297 88T 3,863 344
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Taskinigahp Trust

Statement of Remeasurement Gains (Losses)
Far the year ended December 31, 2013

2013 2013 2012
Budget
Accumulated remeasurement gains, beginning of year 166,081 166,081 286,792
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments - (61,451) {120,711)
Accumulated remeasurement gains, end of year 166,081 104,630 166,081

Taskinigahp Trust

Statement of Cash Flows
Far the year ended December 31, 2013

2013 2012
Cash provided by (used for) the following activities
Operating activities
Cash from transmission benefits revenue 310,019 389,283
Cash transfer to Taskinigahp Trust Office (1,181,002) (312,970)
Cash from interest income 122,436 209,527
Cash from water power rental income 1,684,927 -
Cash transfer to Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation - (2.800,000)
936,380 (2,514,160)
Investing activities
Furchases of investments (8,608,069) (3,873,638)
Redemption of investments 7,634,656 5,387,449
(973,413) 2,513,811
Decrease in cash (37,033) (349)
Cash, beginning of year 92,135 92,484
Cash, end of year 55,102 92,135

TRUST OFFICE Annual Report 2013
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Taskinigahp Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013

104

Operations

The Taskinigahp Trust (the "Trust") was created on June 26, 2006.

Misichawayasihk Cree Mation (via a wholly owned subsidiary corporation, Taskinigahp Power Corpaoration) has entered into
a partnership with Manitoba Hydro to develop, construct and operate a hydroelectric generating station at Taskinigahp Falls
in Maniteba, called Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership, The purpose of the Trust is to receive (as assigned from
Taskinigahp Power Corporation) all settlement proceeds (for adverse effects), the proceeds of all dividend loans, the
distributions from the Wuskwatim Transmission Development Fund (called transmission benefits) and all dividends declared
by Taskinigahp Power Corporation. These funds are to be used for the benefit of Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation and its
Members,

Settlement Proceeds

Under the NCN Adverse Effects Agreement, Settlement Proceeds in the amount of 55,700,000 ($1,500,000 in 2006 and
$4,200,000 in 2008) wers paid to Taskinigahp Trust.

Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are the representalions of management, prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards and include the following significant accounting policies:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include balances with banks and short-term investments with maturities of three months or less.
Cash subject to restrictions that prevent its use for current purposes is included in restricted cash,

Basis of presentation

Sources of revenue and expenses are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of accounting
recognizes revenue as it becomes available and measurable; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and
measurable as a result of the receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis as earned. Realized gains (losses) are recognized as investments mature
or are sold. Transmission benefits and water power rental income are recognized as they becomes receivable under the
terms of the applicable agreements within the Wuskwatim Praject Development Agreement.

Measurcment uncertainty

The preparalion of financial stalements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclasure of
conlingent assels and liabilities at the dale of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period.

Accounts receivable are stated afier evaluation as to their collectibility and an appropriate allowance for doubtiul accounts is
provided where considered necessary.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in
operations in the period in which they become known.



Taskinigahp Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013

Significant accounting policies (Continued from previous page)

Financilal instruments
Amortized Cost:

The Trust has classifiad the following financial assets in the amortized cost category: cash and accounts receivable, These
assets are initially recognized at their fair value. Fair value is approximated by the instrument's cost in a transaction
between unrelated parties. Transaciions to purchase or sell these items are recorded on the trade date.

Cash and accounts receivable are subsequently measured at their amortized cost, using the effective interest method.
Under this method, estimated future cash receipts are exactly discounted over the asset's expected life, or other appropriate
period, to its net carrying value. Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
less principal payments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and less any reduction for impairment or uncollectability.

The Trust has classified the following liabilities in the amortized cost category: accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
due to Taskinigahp Trust Office. These liabilites are initially recognized at their fair value, Fair value is approximated by the
instrument's initial cost in a transaction between unrelated parties. Transactions to purchase or sell these items are
recorded on the trade date.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to Taskinigahp Trust Office are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Under this method, estimated future cash payments are exactly discounted over the
liability's expacted life, or other appropriate peried, to its nel carrying value. Amorlized cost is the amount at which the
financial liability is measured at initial recognition less principal repayments, and plus or minus the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the mafurity amount.

Fair Value:

The Trust has classified the following financial assat in the fair value category: portfolio investments, These assets are
initially recognized at their fair value. Fair value is approximated by the instrument’s initial cost in a transaction between
unrelated parties. Transactions to purchase or sell these items are recorded on the trade date.

Partfolio investments are subsequently measured at their fair value. Investments in equity instruments that do not have
quoted market prices in an active market are measurad at cost. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value, except
far impairment losses and foreign exchange translation adjustments, are recognized in the statement of remeasurament
gains and losses as a remeasurement gain or loss, until the financial asset is sold or otherwise derecognized. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses is
transferred to the statement of operations.
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Taskinigahp Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013

106

Internal restrictions

Taskinigah mmuni vl n
The Taskinigahp Community Developmeant Account shall be used:

i} to implement the NCN Adverse Effects Agreement, administer the Taskinigahp Trust, and conduct the Community
Involvemenl Process;

ii) for the economic, social and cultural development of Misichawayasihk Cree Nation and its Members;
iii}y for the physical development of the Nisichawayasihk Cree Nation Reserve;

iv) for environmental monitoring and resource management programs;

v} for operations and maintenance of Capital Works;

vi) to distribute approved Funds Available to Chief and Council for allocation to the Resource Account, the Seven
Generations Account and the Seven Generations Growth Account; and

vil) for such other purposes approved by Chief and Council following the Community Invelvement Process,

Eunds Available

The Funds Available for any year is the aggregate of income for the fiscal year. After the Final Closing Date or termination
of the Project Development Agreement (as stipulated in 3.2.5 of the Adverse Effects Agreement), the Funds Available will
also include the amount by which the Met Value of the Assets at the end of the prior fiscal year exceeds 50% of the
Settlement Proceeds received, as defined in Mote 1.

Income is defined as all income for the fiscal year of the Trust, except any Growth Income or Resource Income calculated in
accordance with Section 3 of the Income Tax Acl withoul references to subsections 75(2) or 104(8) thereof, except in
making such calculations, there shall be excluded any gross-up of any dividend and there shall be included the entirety of
any capital gain.

Met Value of the Assats is defined as the amount at any specific date by which the value of the Assets on that date,
excluding any funds in the Seven Generalions Growth Account and the Resource Account, exceeds all liabilities of the Trust
and where all property comprising Assels are valued at the lower of cost or fair market value.

Resource Account

The Resource Account will receive all payments from the Wuskwatim Transmission Development Fund (called transmission
benefils) as well as any amounts allocated through the Community Invelvement Process. The account shall be used for
resource development and management programs within the Resource Management Area and to fund Nisichawayasihk
Cree Mation's aclivities in relation to Melson House Resource Management Board. A further restriction on all transmission
benefils received annually is as follows:

i) 75% of transmission benefits and all related income will be used to fund resource programs and activities;

ii} 25% of fransmission benefits will be invested in a resource sub-account as restricted capital and only the income on
these funds may be used to fund resource programs and activities ($314,600 of resfricted capital exigted at December 31,
2013).

The Taskinigahp Claims Account shall be used for:

i} the payment of claims and costs in accordance with NCN Adverse Effects Agreement;

ii) the reasonable costs of the arbitrater arising out of claims under the NCN Adverse Effects Agreement;
jii) the reasonable costs to invesligate claims; and

iv) payment of costs awarded to an eligible Claimant.

The Taskinigahp Claims Account shall be replenished at the begining of each fiscal year as a first priority from the Funds
Available to ensure that after payment of all claims approved for payment in the previous fiscal year, a minimum balance of
$50,000 is maintained. Funds in the Taskinigahp Trust Account in excess of $50,000 on the last business day of a fiscal
year shall be transferred on that date to the Seven Generations Growth Account.



Taskinigahp Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013

Internal restrictions (Conlinued from previous page)

Seven Generations Account
The Seven Generations Account shall hold funds for future uses and contingencies. A majority vote at a meeting of
members is required to impose restrictions on these funds and to authorize expenditures from these funds.

nerati r
The Seven Generations Growth Account shall hold funds saved for future generations.

Ten percent (10%) of dividends paid to the Trust in any year, when the payment is less than ten million dollars, and twenty
five percent (25%), where the payment is more than ten million dollars shall be deposited to the Seven Generations Growth
Account, and for greater certainty, shall not form part of Funds Available, Mo funds in the Seven Generations Growth
Account shall be spent until a minimum of one hundrad million dellars has been allocated to this account.

Once the balance reaches one hundred million dollars, additional annual distributions of up to ten percent of the Growth
Incame may be paid to Members in any year. Also, Growth Income, subject to approval, shall be available for expenditure in
addition to Funds Available.

Undistributed Income

The balance of any income, Growth Income or Resource Income which remains undistributed on the last business day of a
fiscal year shall be payable on demand to Chief and Council who shall seftle such funds on the Trust with Chief and
Council's direction that the funds ba depasited to the Taskinigahp Community Development Account, they shall, subject to
the Community Invalvement Process, be spent in a subsequent fiscal year in addition to the Funds Available otherwise to
be disbursed for that year.

Accounts receivable

2013 2012
(Restated)
Accrued interest 18,774 20,444
Province of Manitoba 457,354 501,227
476,128 521,671
Due to Taskinigahp Trust Office
2013 2012
Due to Taskinigahp Trust Office 537,677 83,811

During the year, Taskinigahp Trust transferred 31,635,880 (2012 - $363,000) to Taskinigahp Trust Office to fund programs
in accordance with the Community Invelvement Process. Amounts due to Taskinigahp Trust Office are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. During the prier year, Taskinigahp Trust transferred $2,800,000 to
Misichawayasihk Cree Nation in accordance with the Community Invelvement Process for the purpose of funding
Taskinigahp Power Corporafion's purchase of additional invesiment units in Wuskwatim Power Limited Partnership.

Taskinigahp Trust is related to both Taskinigahp Trust Office and Taskinigahp Power Corporation by virtue of commaon
control by the Chief and Council of Nisichawayasihk Cree Mation.

Accumulated surplus and net financial assets

2013 2012

{Restated)

Accumulated surplus from operations 4,297 887 3,853,344
Accumulated remeasurement gains 104,630 166,081

4,402,517 4,019,425
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Taskinigahp Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2013

Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments recorded at fair value in Taskinighap Trust consist of: portfolio investments.

Fair value hierarchy:

Beginning January 1, 2011, assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on the statement of financial position are measured
and classified in the hierarchy consisling of three levels for disclosure purposes. The three levels are based on the priority
of the inputs to the respective valuation technigue. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to queted prices in
active markets for idenfical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). An asset or
liability's classification within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of significant input to its valuation. The
input levels are defined as follows:

- Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in an active market for identical assets and liabilities,

Assats of the Trust measured at fair value and classified as Level 1 include portfolio investments. The cost base of the
portfolio investments at December 31, 2013 was $4,313,304 (December 31, 2012 - $3,331,298).

- Level 2: Quuoted prices in markets that are not active or inputs that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly {i.e., derived from prices).

Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for assets in markets that are considered less active. There are no assets of the Trust
measured at fair value classified as Lavel 2.

- Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are significant 1o the estimated fair value
of the assets or liabilities.

Level 2 assets and liabilitizs would include financial instruments whose values are determinad using pricing models,
discounted methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of estimated fair valus
requires significant management judgment or estimation. There are no assats of the Trust measurad at fair value classified
as Level 3.

Mature and extent of risk arising from financial instruments

Market Risk:

Market risk arises from changes in interest rates that afiect Taskinigahp Trust's interest income. Exposure to this risk
diractly impacis Taskinigahp Trust's income from its portfolio investments. Taskinigahp Trust's objective is to eam an
acceplable net return on these porifolio investments, without taking unreasonable risk, while meeting beneficiaries’ needs.

Risk measurement;

Taskinigahp Trust's risk position is measured and monitored each month to ensure compliance with policies as noted in the
Trust Indenture. Management provides monthly reports on these matters 1o the Trustees of Taskinigahp Trust.

Objectives, policies and processes:

Corporate Truslees are responsible for managing Taskinigabp Trust's interest rate risk. moniloring portiolio investments and
compliance with policies. Taskinigahp Trust manages market risk by developing and implementing assel and liability
managemeni policies, which are approved and periodically reviewed by the Chief and Council of Nisichawayasihk Cree
Mation and the Corporate Trustees.

Prior period adjustment

During the year, the Trust determined that an accounts receivable from the Province of Manitoba and the related water
power rental revenue both in the amount of $501,227 were not included in the prier year's financial statements.

The retroactive application of this adjustment has resulted in increases in accounts receivable and accumulated surplus and
net finanical assets of $501,227 as at December 31, 2012 and an increase in revenue and a corresponding decrease in the
annual deficit from operations of $501,227 for the year ended December 31, 2012,
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Taskinigahp Trust

Schedule 3 - Statement of Portfolio Investments
As at December 31, 2013

{Unaudited)
2013 2012
Community Development Account
Treasury Bills:
Canada Treasury Bill, 0.9% - 68,830
Canada Treasury Bill, 0.9%, due 13/03/2014 1,097,800 -
Canada Treasury Bill, 0.9%, due 13/03/2014 84,853 -
1,182,653 68,830
Provincial bonds:
Province of Quebec, 4.5% due 1122015 661,655 673,153
661,655 673,153
Corporate bonds:
American Express Canada, 2.31% due 28/03/2018 290,864 -
Bank of Nova Scotia, 4.56% - 584,911
Bank of Nova Scotia Deposit Note, 3.35% due 18/11/2014 508,710 515,680
CIBC Deposit Note, 3.95% due 14/07/2017 603,123 612,072
Wells Fargo Financial Canada, 4. 38% due 30/06/2015 593 458 603 881
1,996,153 2,316,554
Total Portfolio Investments - Community Development Account 3,840,461 3,068,537
Resource Account - General
Treasury Bills:
Canada Treasury Bill, 0.9% - 49,873
Canada TrEaS“rH E“I,, 0.9% = 159.&05
Canada Treasury Bill, 0.9%, due 13/03/2014 _ 106,786 -
Total Portfolio Investments - Resource Account - General 108,786 209,478
Resource Account - Savings
Treasury Bills:
Canada Treasury Bill, 0.9% - 84,759
Canada Treasury Eill, 0.9%, due 13/02/2014 83,820 -
83,6820 94,759
Corporate bonds:
American Express Canada, 2.31% due 20/03/2018 6,902 -
Bank of Nova Scotia, 4.56% - 7,183
Bank of Nova Scotia Deposit Note, 3.35% due 18/11/2014 20,348 20,628
CIBC Deposit Note, 3.95% due 14/0772017 8,465 8,590
HSBC Bank Canada, 2.938% due 14/01/2020 98,914 -
Hydro One Inc, Series 25, 3.2% due 13/01/2022 59,242 62,185
Royal Bank SNR Deposit Mote, 4.71% due 221122014 7,223 7414
Wells Fargo Financial Canada, 4.38% due 30/06/2015 28,111 28,605
229,205 134,605
Total Portfolio Investments - Resource Account - Savings 313,025 229,364
Seven Generations Growth
Treasury Bills:
Canada Treasury Bill, 0.9%, due 13/02/2014 157,662 -
4,417,934 3,497 379
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MNotice To Reader

On the basis of information provided by managemanl, we have compiled the statement of inancial positlon by fund of Taskinigahp Trust
fice as at Decemnber 31, 2013 and the slatameants of operations, accumuiated surplus and changes in nef financial assets by fund anc
cash flowe for the year then ended. We have not performed an audit or 2 review engagement in respect of these financia! statemenls

and, accordingly, we expréss no assurancs thereon. Readers are caulionzd thal thege slalamenls may not be appropriate for their

purposes,

Winnipey, Manitoba M A/ P LLpP

March 3, 2015 Chartgred Accounlanls

251 - 207 Povtage Ave. Wirutipeg, Maniloba, RI0 IKE, Phorte. (204) FFA-4531, 1 (@77} 500-0735

14



Taskinigahp Trust Office

Statement of Financial Position by Fund
As At Decembar 31, 2013
fUnaudited - 566 Nolica to Roadar)

Gontmunity
Cevelopment Claims Resourcs
Fund Fund FT.LI_'II:I 2013 2012
Financizl azzsats
Cash 203,477 24,894 A3, 658 281,829  {08.B43
Due from rakated parties (Ao 3) 307 549 5408 224,628 537 877 q3e
511,126 30,054 258,286 799,506 192 654
Liabililies
Accounts pavahle and acorued fiakililies 18,759 - - 18,759 11,501
Crue to relaled parties fode ) 235 847 (1,069 224,626 459 406 dd 438
Due between funds {33.658) - 33,658 - -
220,948 {1,085} 258,285 478,165 55,935
Accumulated surplus and net financizl asgets 250,178 31,163 - 381,341 136715

TRUST OFFICE Annual Report 2013
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Taskinigahp Trust Office
Statement of Operations, Accumulated Surplus and Changes in Net Financial Assets

by Fund
For the year ended December 31, 2013
{Unaudied - see Notice o Reader)

Communlty
2013 Deovelopment Claims Resoorce
Budget Fund Fund Fund 2013 202
Revenue
Taskinggahp Trasl funding 1,636,869 960,219 15000 650,670 1,636,889 363,000
Infedest - 24871 42 - 3,213 1,857
1,635,864 SE3.000 1532 880670 1638102 364,857
Expenses
Adminislralive costs 2,000 3,540 - - 1,640 4,660
Claims pragram 15,000 - 13,458 - 13,459 14,424
Annual audil faes 20,000 15 600 - B 15,600 14 707
Corparsle ustee lees 26,250 23944 - - 23,944 32 Bod
Commuonily Invobverment Process 37,500 30,000 - - 30,600 25 000
Professional services A0, 000 11,000 - = 11,000 11,600
Metzon House Iruslees 14 4040 22,382 - - 22,382 28 447
Communily develapment plan - - - - - 5,00
Tranamigsion banefits 4% 335 - - - - -
Capial projects - QX School roof 200, 800 20000 - - 200,000 -
Educalion:
Sludent supports - Pe Ta Pon project 200,000 200,000 - - 200,008 -
ATEC operalions and maintenanca 199,050 188 040 = B 149,090 E
Resource and land vsa:
Trappers Associztion 125,000 - - 125,000 125,000 -
Figherman Association 125,000 - - 125,000 125000 175,000
Jack Moore elders adilonal program 160,670 - - 160,670 160,670 -
Counlry loods program 200,000 - - 200.000 200,000 -
MCH resource managemenl 50,000 - - 50,000 50,000 29 8560
Social development:
Prarnoding wealingss and commamly spird &7,691 67 491 - - 67,681 -
CHher programs - Elders susidy (off-reserve} 47853 TAQn - - 7,100 -
1,635,883 TEOAT 134559 @60ETO 1454476 3471 581
Annual surplus - 182,743 1.883% . 184 626 23,268
Accumulated surplus and net financial assats,
ﬂinning of year 136,715 107.435 29,280 - 136,715 113,449
Accumulated surplus and net financial assets, end
of year 136,715 290,178 31,163 . 321,347 138715
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Taskinigahp Trust Office

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2013
{Unaudited - see Nolice o Readar)

2012 2012
Cash graovided by jused for) the Following achivities
Operating activities
Cash receipts from Taskinigahp Trus! 1,182,022 32 971
Cash paid for program expensas {1,032 248) (364, 108}
Inlerest receivad 3,213 1,857
152 984 {48, 278)
Increase {decrease) in cazh resources 152,988 {45, 2T8)
Cash rasources, beginning of year 108 843 158 121
Cash resources, end of year 261,824 108 843

TRUST OFFICE Annual Report 2013
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Taskinigahp Trust Office

Notes to the Financial Statements
Faor the year ended December 31, 203
{Unavdied - see Makice to Readers

Cperations

Taskinigahp Trust Offige was astablished in January 2008 to administer, on behalfl of Chief and Council of Nisichawayasink
Cree Mafion, The Frogram Funding received from Taskinigahp Trust.

These inancial slatements presenl the assels, fiabiliies, revenue, axpenditures and surpluses of tha vancus programs
inzofar as ey relale to the Taskingahp Trust funding. As a result, these stalements do not include all of the revenus and
expendiluras of the Varigus programs.

Internal restrictions

As shipulated in e Trost Indenture, the financial position and operations of Taskinigahp Trust Offce have been allocaled
inlo Funds wilh restnictions on the uses of 2ach fund as feliows:

The Funds Available (program funding) for any year are the amounts approved through the Community Invoiverment
Process for adminislering the Taskintgahp Trust Office and funding the various programs, not o exceed Ihe approved
brudgel for that year (F960.219 for the yoar ended December 31, 2013).

The funging of the Claims Fund bas a firs] priodity over olher pragrams (junded $15,300 for the year ended December 37,
2013).

Cormmunily Developmen Fund

The Corrwnity Development Fund incledes ransactions relaled to imphementing the Agreemenl, admiriglering the
Taskinigang Trugl Office and vangus programs and conducting the Community Involvemend Process.

Resgunce Fund

The Resoures Fund includes transactions relating fo resaurce development and managemenl pragrams within the
Resource Management area and lo fund related achyilies,

&l funds paid to the Resource Fund must be approved during the Community Involvement Process (5560,570 for the year
ended December 21, 2013}

Claimsg Fund
The Claims Fund incledes Wansactions relaled 1o seiling compensation claims of:

it Misichawayasihk Crae Malion

i) s Members, and

i) any group, unincorparated assovialion. ar corparalon whose membership or shareholding is wholly or substandialky
contprsed and controfled by Misichawayasihk Cree MNation or its Members,

for damages and losses suffersd resulling from, o altributabla 10 the adverse affects of the Wuaskwatin Project and the
Wivskwatim Project Related Transmizsion Facilties.

A the beginning of each fiscal year, an amount will be allocated as g rst prcnly from the Funds Available fo ensure thal a
minimum balanse of $50,000 {the aggregate of unds both at Taskinigahp Trusl Office and al Taskinigahp Trust) is
mainlained in the Claims Fund. Funds in excess of 550,000 on the lasl business day of a fiscal year shall be wansfemed on
thal date bp the Seven Generations Growih Accound al Taskinigahp Trost



Taskinigahp Trust Office

Netes to the Financial Statements
For the yaar ended December 31, 202
[Ungudited - sae Malice o Readorp

Internal Restrigtions (Conlinued from prewious page)

Funds &t Crecember 31 consisted of the following:

2013 2mz
Taskinigahp Trust 3,880 3,873
Taskinigahp Trust Office 31,163 29,280
35042 33,153
Bue from tto] refated parties
013 2012
Due from related entities:
Taskintgahp Trust S37T 6T a3.811
Bue to related entities;
Atoskiwin Training ang Employment Centre (135,891} -
Gilbert MelDonald Arena (23,756} -
Melson House Education Aulhonly Inc. (68,000} -
Misichawayasihk Trusl Cihice {231,959} 44, 438)
{455 406} o44,435)

Duning the year, Taskimgahp Trusl transfered 1,835 889 (2042 - $383 0000 to Taskinmahp Trus! Office to fund programs
n accordance with e Community Invoivemenl Process.

Durning the year, Taskimgahp Trusi Office transfamred $1,357 451 (2012 - $234,850) tv assisl in partially funding the
programs of the follewing entities:

Aloskiwin Training and Employment Centre - $399,000 (2012 - nil}
Gilbert tcDonald Arena - 357 591 (2012 - nil}

Melsan House Education Aulkonly ine. - S200,000 {2012 - nil}
Misichawayagihk Trugt Ofice - $690,670 (2012 - $234.850)

Exponses by ohjoct
2073 2012

Administration 3 253
Bank charges and interasl 774 287
Investment managemeant fees 23,544 a2 804
HNCH Trustee expenses 22382 28,447
Off-reserve assistance 700 -
Professional fees 26,600 26307
Salaries, wages and benehts 13,456 14 421
Transfers 1o refaled anbilies 1,367,451 234 850
Travel 2. 786 4122

1,454,476 341,581

TRUST OFFICE Annual Report 2013 no
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